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To the Board of County Commissioners and the 
Citizens of Allegany County, Maryland 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Allegany County, Maryland for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, including the report of our independent Certified Public 
Accountants is presented herewith. This report has been prepared by the Allegany County 
Finance Department in accordance with Article 19 of the Annotated Code of the State of 
Maryland and with Part I, Chapter 26, Article 26-3 of the Allegany County code. This report is 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Allegany 
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, management of Allegany County has established a comprehensive 
internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, 
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County's 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not 
outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been 
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will 
be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The County's financial statements have been audited by Turnhull, Hoover & Kahl, PA., a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2013, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
assessing the accounting principles used, and significant estimates made by management; and 
evaluating the overall fiancial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, 
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that 
the County's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in 
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of 
the financial section of this report. 



The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally 
mandated 'Single Audit' designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal 
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and 
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in 
Allegany County's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County's MD&A can be 
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of Allegany County 

Allegany County, located on the Potomac River in western Maryland, was established in 1789. It 
is bordered by Pennsylvania to the north and West Virginia to the south, and comprises an area 
of 428 square miles. Cumberland, the County seat, covering eight square miles, is at an elevation 
of 641 feet. Curnberland is situated approximately 100 miles southeast of Pittsburgh and 
130 miles northwest of Baltimore and Washington, D.C. There are seven incorporated 
municipalities in the County: Barton, Cumberland, Frostburg, Lonaconing, Luke, Midland and 
Westernport. 

The County is predominately rural in character. The 2000 census showed a population of 
74,930; according to the 2010 Census, the population is 75,087 for the County. The County seat 
and principal city is Curnberland, with a 2010 population of 20,859. 

Both the executive and legislative functions of the County are vested in the elected, three 
member Board of County Commissioners. Commissioners are elected on a county-wide basis 
and serve four-year terms. The Board elects one Commissioner to serve as its President. The 
Board is required to meet monthly. 

In 1974, the County adopted the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F 
of the Maryland Constitution and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this 
form of government, the Board has the authority to enact, amend, and repeal public local laws 
relating to the incorporation, organization, and government of the county, including, laws 
authorizing the issuance and sale of bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each 
member of the board has one vote and, except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the 
Board is sufficient to enact any bill into law. 

In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator of Allegany 
County responsible to the Board and charged with the administration of all County affairs. The 
Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board, direct and supervise the administration of 
all departments and agencies, and perform all duties enumerated in the Allegany County Code 
Chapter 2, Article I .  



County financial matters are administered through the Department of Finance of the County by 
the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance is charged with the administration of the 
financial affairs of the County, which generally include the receiving of County taxes, fees and 
other revenues and funds of every kind due to the County; the custody and safekeeping of all 
funds or securities belonging to or by law deposited with, distributed to, or handled by the 
County; the disbursement of County funds; the keeping and supervision of all accounts; and such 
other functions as may be prescribed by the Board. 

BUDGET 

The formulation of the County's Budget is a joint responsibility between the Director of Finance, 
who also serves as Budget Officer, and the County Administrator. In addition to formulating the 
Budget, the Budget Officer is responsible for the submission to the Board of periodic reports on 
their efficiency and economy, and such other duties and functions as may be assigned by the 
Board. 

The County Budget is comprised of the Operating Budget, which has current year appropriations 
for all funds, and the Capital Budget. 

Operating Budget 

The Operating Budget, which must be balanced, is prepared by the County Administrator and the 
Director of Finance on a modified accrual basis and submitted for approval of the Board of 
County Commissioners. It is based upon estimated revenues and expenditures for operations for 
the ensuing fiscal year that is submitted to the Director of Finance by the department head of 
each office, Court, department, institution, board, commission, corporation or other agency of the 
County government. The current Operating Budget must contain the following information: (1) a 
schedule of all revenues estimated to be received by the County during the ensuing fiscal year, 
classified to show the receipts by funds and sources of income; (2) a schedule of the debt service 
requirements for the ensuing fiscal year; (3) schedule of the receipts and expenditures for the last 
two completed fiscal years, the estimated receipts and expenditures of the current ending fiscal 
year and the expenditures recommended by the Board of County Commissioners for the ensuing 
fiscal year for each function, activity, and sub activity; and (5) any other material which the 
Board of County Commissioners may deem advisable. 

Variance reports of actual revenues and expenditures versus budgeted revenues and expenditures 
are prepared by the Director of Finance on a monthly basis. Additionally, individual offices, 
departments, boards, commissions, and other agencies of the County review on a monthly basis 
all events affecting their budgetary estimates and can request the Board for supplemental 
appropriations to increase their budgetary allowances. The Board in turn has the power to grant 
such increases. 



Capital Budget 

The Capital Budget is prepared by the Capital Projects Engineer after approval by the Review 
Committee and then submitted for approval to the Board of County Commissioners. The Review 
Committee consists of the County Administrator, the Director of Public Works, the Director of 
Finance, the Director of Economic and Community Development, and the County Engineer. It is 
based on the need for having certain capital projects undertaken and the availability of financial 
resources. Each project is identified with estimated costs and estimated sources of funding. All 
funding requests are then applied to a debt affordability model to ascertain if the proposed debt is 
within the County's self-imposed debt guidelines. 

Adoption of Budget 

Before the end of April in each year, the preliminary County Budget is publicly reviewed by the 
County Commissioners at an announced time and date. Opportunities are then available at the 
next several public meetings for citizens to express their views. After the public hearings, the 
Board of County Commissioners may revise the preliminary budget. Line item details of all 
individual departmental and agency requests and proposed appropriations are available. The 
Board is further authorized to revise the schedule of anticipated receipts and estimated rates for 
general and special taxes. The Budget must be approved and signed by a majority of the 
Commissioners by June 30th. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which Allegany 
County operates. 

Local economy: Allegany County currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and local 
indicators point to continued stability. The unemployment rate has increased from 8.3% at June 
30, 2012 to 8.6% at June 30, 2013. The region has diverse manufacturing and industrial base of 
paper manufacturing, rail transportation and the manufacturing of window coverings. A varied 
service provider base gives the area relative stability of the unemployment rate. Major service 
providers include health services, government, education, and call centers. 

The state and federal government have a major economic presence with the operation of 
correctional facilities. The state also operates a 4-year higher education institution that serves 
the region offering a variety of undergraduate and graduate programs. 

Allegany County has a total labor force of 36,496. The total labor force remains relatively 
unchanged which mirrors the population census of the county. Recent population projections 
have the county maintaining its current population which reverses decades of population loss. 

Long-term financial planning: The County adopts a five year Capital Improvement Program 
each year as required by state law. During fiscal year 2013 the County borrowed $5.2 million 
for water and sewer projects; $3,477,898 for the Mount Savage Water project, Braddock Run 
Sewer Project $127,230, Bedford Road Sewer Project, $755,816 and $ 854,478 for Jennings Run 



Sewer project. 

Also, during FY 13, the county refunded debt and the new debt outstanding is $14,040,000. As a 
result of the refunding, the County decreased its total debt service requirement by $ 1,120,244. 

Major initiatives: As part of the 2013 Capital Improvement Program, the Commissioners 
approved funding for a new, approximately 800 seat Allegany High School to be constructed 
beginning in FY 2015, which will replace what is currently the oldest active high school building 
in the State of Maryland. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Allegany County 
for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. This was 
the twenty-first consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In 
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable 
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another 
certificate. 

I wish to acknowledge the support and interest of the Board of County Commissioners and the 
County Administrator in the recording and reporting of financial matters. It is of the utmost 
importance that the accounting functions have this support. I also want to express my 
appreciation to Pamela S Smith, CPA, Assistant Director of Finance, and the entire staff of the 
Finance Ofice for their cooperation, dedication, and professionalism in the preparation of this 
report. In conclusion, I want to acknowledge the efforts of the many County employees that 
support the accounting function. 

Respectfully submitted, 

!fd<on M. Bennett, CPA 
Director of Finance 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland 
(the County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We did not audit the financial statements of the Allegany County Board of Education, the 
LaVale Sanitary Commission, and the Allegany County Library System which represent 
72 percent, 71 percent, and 77 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and 
revenues of the component units. Those financial statements were audited by other 
auditors whose reports thereon have been -shed to us, and our opinion, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included for the Allegany County Board of Education, the LaVale 
Sanitary Commission, and the Allegany County Library System is based solely on the 
reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fiaud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of acwunting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland, as of June 30,2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages B-l through B-10, the schedule of 
funding progress for other post-employment benefits on page D-3, and the budgetary 
comparison information on pages D-4 through D-12 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise Allegany County, Maryland's basic financial statements. The 
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed 
as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 26, 2013, on our consideration of Allegany County, Maryland's internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Allegany County, Maryland's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Cumberland, Maryland 
November 26.201 3 





Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Allegany County, we offer readers of Allegany County's fmancial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found at page ix of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

The assets of Allegany County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$184.5 million (net position). Of this amount, $161.2 million is net investment in capital assets and 
$3.3 million is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net position). The County's total unrestricted 
net position is $20 million. This total unrestricted net position amount includes $18.2 million 6om 
governmental activities, and unrestricted net position balance from business-type activities of $1.8 
million. 
The government's total net position increased by $7.6 million or 4.3%. The govemmental net position 
increased $6 million (or 6.4%). Business-type net assets increased by $ 1.6 million (or 2%) during the 
year. 
As of the close of the current fiscal year, Allegany County's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $34.1 million, an increase of $ 6.3 million in comparison with the prior year. 
The increase was due largely to all departments either staying within budget or under budget. 
Approximately 52.5% of the ending fund balance, $17.9 million, is available for spending at the 
government's discretion (unassigned find balance), $1.2 million is nonspendahle, $3.2 million is 
restricted, $8.9 million is committed to certain programs and $2.9 million is assigned to specific 
programs. 
Allegany County's governmental activity outstanding debt decreased by $2.6 million (or 2%) during 
the current fiscal year. The County issued refinancing general obligation debt during the 2013 fiscal 
year. The County's business-type debt increased by $4 million (or 15%) due to borrowing for 
improvements to and construction of various water and sewer projects. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Allegany County's basic financial 
statements. Allegany County's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government- 
wide fmancial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the fmancial statements. This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of Allegany County's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector 
business. 

The statement ofnetposition presents information of all of Allegany County's assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the fmancial position of Allegany County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused, vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide fmancial statements distinguish functions of Allegany County that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 



functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-@pe activities). The government activities of Allegany County include general government, 
public safety, public works, social services, economic development, and payments to component units (the 
public school system, community college and library). The business-type activities of Allegany County 
include the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Loan Fund and Allconet 11. 

The government-wide fmancial statements include not only Allegany County itself (hown as the primary 
government), but also a legally separate public school system, community college, library system and a 
sewer district. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial 
information presented for the primary government itself. Detail financial information on the component 
units can be found on their separately issued fmancial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages C5-C7 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fundis a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities of objectives. Allegany County, l i e  other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of Allegany County can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government- 
wide fmancial statements, govenunental fund fmancial statements focus on near-term inflows and ouflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating governments' near-term financial requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fmancial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental &nds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financial decisions. 
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

Allegany County maintains fifteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the revolving building fund, both of which are 
considered to be major funds. Data kom the other thirteen governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided 
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The basic governmental fund fmancial statements can be found on pages C9-C20 of this report 

Proprietary funds. Allegany County has one type of proprietary funds. Enterprisefinds are used to report 
the same functions presented as business-@pe activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
Allegany County uses enterprise funds to account for its water fund, sewer fund, loan fund, and the 
Allconet I1 fund 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. The proprietary fund fmancial statements provide separate information for all of the 
enterprise funds, of which the water and sewer funds are considered to be major funds of Allegany County 

The basic proprietary fund fmancial statements can be found on pages C15-C17 of this report. 
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide fmancial statement because the 



resources of those funds are not available to support Allegany County's own programs. The accounting 
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund fmancial statements can be found on pages C18-19 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages C23-64 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic fmancial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning Allegany County's progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension benefits to certain groups of its employees 

Also reported as required supplementary information are budgetary comparison schedules for the General 
Fund and the Revolving Building which are reported as major funds. Required supplementary information 
can be found on pages D3-12 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal 
senrice funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining 
and individual fund statements and schedules can he found on pages E4-50 of this report. 

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective 
administrative offices. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's fmancial position. 
In the case of Allegany County, assets exceeded liabilities by $184.5 million at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of Allegany County's net position ($161.2 million) reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those 
assets that is still outstanding. Allegany County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens 
consequently; these assets are not available for future spending. Although Allegany County's investment 
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided kom other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. 

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S NET POSITION 

Governmental Activities ~ u s i n e s s - w o e  ~ctivities Total 
FYZOU FY 2012 FYZOU FYZOlZ FY 2013 FY 20lZ 

Assets: 
Current and other assets 5 46,377,027 $ 36,391203 S 5,466,067 5 4,525780 5 5L843.094 S 40,912.98a 
Capital assets 86.784.521 91119,134 313,382,159 108,179,776 200.166.680 199,298,910 

Total B S S ~ ~ S  133.161548 lZ7.510.337 118.848.226 112.701556 252,009,774 240.211893 

~ - ~ .  
Current and other liabilities 1U02.349 9,658,634 3,497,213 2,890,131 14,799,562 12,548,765 
Long-term liabilities outstanding 22.007.100 24.035.566 30,675,739 26.704.520 52.682.839 50,740,086 

Total liabIlitier 33.309.449 33.694.200 34.172.952 29,594,651 67,482,401 63.288.851 

NC.tp0~ition: 
Net invesment in capital assets 78,548,257 82,834,048 82,603,601 81346,531 16l.151858 164,180,579 
Resuicted 3,083,383 5921413 288,6U 239,902 3,371998 2,161315 
Unre~nicted L8.220.459 9,060,676 1783.058 1520.472 20.003.517 10.581148 

Total net position $ 99,852,099 $ 9- $ 84575,274 $ 2.U!06.905 5-3 S 176,923.042 

An additional portion of Allegany County's net position (1.8%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The County has an unrestricted netposition balance of $20 



million. The unrestricted net position balance for the governmental activities was $18.2 million and the 
business-type activities have a balance of $1.8 million. 

During the current fiscal year, the government's net position increased by $7.6 million. Revenues 
increased by approximately $2.1 million to $106.8 million while expenses decreased by $400,000 kom the 
prior year to $99.2 million. 

ALLEGANYCOUNTYS CHANGES IN NETPOSII'ION 
Governmental Activities Business-me Activities Total 

Revenues: FY2OU FY2012 FY2OU FY 2012 FY 2013 FY2OlZ 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 6,402,096 $ 6,564,685 $ 9,413,649 $ 9,311,421 $ 15.8l5.745 $ L5.878.106 
Operating grants and coneibutions 5,100,079 4,t23,606 5,100,079 4,123,606 
Capital grants and ~ootibutions 368,323 2,770,368 3,908,635 2,547,845 4,276,958 5,318,213 

Generalrevenues: 
Property taxes 40,882,732 41274372 986,573 996,575 44869,305 42,267,947 
hcome tares 24,460,225 24,657,767 24,460,225 24,657,767 
O h e r  local terer 4,011282 2,965,592 4,011282 2,965,592 
Franchise taxes 415,158 415,086 415,158 415,086 
Grants and contibutions not 

restncted tos~cci f ic  oroerams 8.940.541 7.359.609 8,940,541 7,359,609 . . . . 
Unresticted fces 
Unreseicted investment earnings 868,087 1163.443 309,448 175,200 4177,535 1338,643 
Gain on salehe6rcment of 

capital assets 387,597 81820 5,924 387,597 87,744 
Mscellaneous 208,120 19L234 103.661 129,278 311781 320,512 

Totalrevenues 92.044.240 91564.582 14.721966 U.168.243 106,766,206 104,732.825 

Expenses: 
General government 9,087,290 

Payment m data processing 358,754 
Public safehi 16.640.877 
Public uorki 12;250;869 
Health 4966,200 
Social services 1553,615 
Education 640,888 

Payment to public schoolsystem 29,394958 
Paymentto community college 7,425,000 

Recreation, culture Brlibranes 884,822 
Paymentto public library system 905,000 

Conservation ofnaturalresources 240,204 
Communitydevelapment&housing 4033,325 
Eoonomic development 2,548,509 
hterest on long-term debt 987,503 
water 
Sewer 
Nursing Home 
Othcr proprietary funds 

Totel expenses 85,914,814 

hcrease in net position before transfers 6,129,426 5,256,930 4474,905 (86,394) 7,604,331 5,170,536 
Transfers (93,464) (167.2521 93.464 167,252 
hcrease (decreare)in net position 6,035,962 5,089,678 4568,369 80,858 7,604,331 5,170,536 
Netposition, beginning 93.816,!37 88,726.459 83,106,905 83.026.047 i76.923.042 371752,506 
Netposition, ending $ 99,852,099 $ 93.816.137 S 84,675,274 $ 83.106.905 S 184.527373 $ 176,923,042 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased Allegany County's net assets by $6 million. 
Total revenues increased $ 480,000 (or .5%) and expenses decreased $400,000 (or .5%). Key elements of 
the changes in governmental net assets are as follows: 

. A continuing decline in personnel costs and overall deparhnent costs. 
Other taxes increased $ 1.1 million largely due to increase in recordation taxes resulting in 
increase in sales of local properties. 
Gain on sale in the amount of $387,597 largely due to sale of RBF buildmg. 
Increase in grants in the amount of $ 1.6 million largely due to $ 1.9 million increase in state 
disparity grant that was received in order to help defiay the costs of the required increase in 
appropriation to the Board of Education. 
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The decrease in governmental expenses of $400,000 (or .5%) was the result of the following: 

Decrease in personnel throughout all county departments. 

Business-type activities. The net position of the County's business-type activities increased by $ 1.6 
million after transfers. Key elements of the increase were: 

Total business-type service charges and related interest income increased approximately $ 235,000. 
Capital grants increased $ 1.4 million due to new major waterlsewer projects. 
Overall expenditures remained relatively the same. Water and sewer costs combined increased $ 
400,000 due to increase in treatment costs and repairs and maintenance. At the same time, expenditures 
in other business type activities decreased $ 400,000 due to major assets reaching full deprecation in 
FY 12 and therefore, depreciation expense dropped $400,000 during the current fiscal year. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business 
Type Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, Allegany County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
fmance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of Allegany County's governmentalfirnds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
Allegany County's fmancing requirements. In particular, unussigned may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balance of $34.1 million, an increase of $ 6.3 million in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 52.5 percent of this total amount ($17.9 million) constitutes unassigned firnd balance, 
which is available for spending at the government's discretion. Other fund balance classifications are; 

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or legally 
required to be maintained intact - $1.2 million 
Restricted - amounts restricted to specific purposes by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or 
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation - $3.2 million. 
Committed - amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed 
by formal action of the County's Board of Commissioners. - $ 8.9 million. 
Assigned - amounts which are intended to be used for specific purposes as constrained by the 
action of the Board or by the Director of Finance - $2.9 million. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Allegany County. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassignedfirnd balance of the general fund was $17.9 million, out of a total fund balance of $19.7 million. 
As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be usehl to compare both unassignedfund balance and 
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 23.3 percent of total 
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 25.7 percent of that same amount. 



Key factors in the $6.3 million increase in the govemmental fund balances are: 

The fund balance of Allegany County's general fund increased $1.8 million; which was the result of: 
Transfers out decreased $ 1.7 million largely due to the $ 1.2 million dollar decrease in transfer to debt 
service fund which was a result of the debt refinancing. 
Overall revenues saw a small increase. 
Expenditures for operating departments of the County saw small increases or, in most cases, realized a 
decrease in the amounts spent from the previous year. The Board of Commissioners had made a 
request for all County departments to voluntary reduce their costs which many were able to achieve. 
The overall increase of expenditures in the amount of $ 640,000 was due in part to the state mandated 
increase in the County's allocation to the Board of Education in the amount of $ 1.2 million. 

The Revolving Building Fund, another major fund, reported an increase in fund balance of $3.6 million. 
Revenues increased slightly ($256,665 or 8%) due to increase in rent lease payments. Major increase in 
revenue was due to sale of a building in the amount of $ 2.5 million. Expenditures decreased drastically 
from 2012 to 2013 in the amount of $ 1.5 million. The decrease in expenditures was the result of a 
decrease in capital outlay for a new shell building. 

The non-major governmental funds fund balance increased by $ 854,643. Most of the increase, $ 1.2 
million was net loan proceeds that are being held in a sinking fund to pay off remaining debt that was 
refmanced. The gaming special revenue fund's fund balance fell $169,841 due to spending from committed 
fund balance for various public school projects. 

Proorietaw funds. Allegany County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net position at year end and the change in 
net position during the current year are highlighted below: 

Water Sanitary Other 
Districts Districts Enterprise Funds Totals 

Net position: 
Net hvestment in capital assets $ 23,827,687 $ 58,608,461 $ 167,4453 $ 82,603,601 
Restricted for debt service 288,615 288,615 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 
Change in net position during 

the year, increase (decrease) $ 1,822,863 $ (154,950) $ (99,546) $ 1,568,367 



Other factors concerning the fmances of these three funds have already been addressed in the discussion of 
Allegany County's business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During the year, the original budget increased $ 850,400 (includes other sources and uses) to a revised total 
of $81.6 million, which was the final amended budget. Significant changes between the original budget 
and the fmal amended budget are summarized as follows: 

Budget was increased during the year in order to account for $550,000 transferred to pay-go. 
The public safety budgets increased $218,000 for grant awards. 

Revenues exceeded budgetary estimates by $920,750 and actual expenditures were less than budgetary 
estimates by $534,615. 

Income taxes exceeded the budget by $429,000. The County's income tax collections continue to defy 
state and national trends with gains. Also, recordation taxes increased $446,100. 
Grants in the General Fund were $665,000 above the estimated budget due to an increase in homeland 
security grant and program open space grant. 
General government expenditures had a favorable variance of $ 534,615. The larger favorable 
variances were: fnancial administration - $446,000. Almost all operating departments fmished well 
within budget and overall personnel cuts were made. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. Allegany County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type 
activities as of June 30, 2013 was $200.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, furniture and fixtures, equipment, vehicles, heavy 
equipment and other miscellaneous assets. The total increase in Allegany County's investment in capital 
assets for the current fiscal year was .4 percent (a 4.8 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 4.8 
percent increase for business-type activities). 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Design and construction on the Mount Savage Water Distribution Water Project with a total cost 
incurred of nearly $ 5  million during the fiscal year. 
Design and construction began on Rawlings Water project, with a cost of $ .8 million during the 
fiscal year 
Major design and construction began on Braddock Run sewer system during the fiscal year at a 
cost of $1.1 million and work on Corrigansville Pump Station was completed with a cost of $ 
810,000 during the fiscal year. 
Sale of RBF building, with an adjusted cost basis of $2.1 million, was the major reason 
governmental assets decreased. 

Additional information on Allegany County's capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements, note 7 on pages C-44 through C-45 ofthis report. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County had total debt outstanding of 
$54.2 million. Governmental activities debt consists of $21 million in general obligation bonds and $2.4 
million of debt incurred with creditors for which the full faith and credit of the County has also been 
pledged. The $30.8 million of debt for the business-type activities (revenue bonds) is either paid from 
revenues restricted for that purpose or by user fees. 



AUEGANYCOUNTYS OUTSTANDINGDFBT 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activitie~ Total 
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Generalobligation $ 20,948,078 $ 14,215,926 $ - $ . $ 20,948,078 $ 14,215,926 
Notes 219,629 8,502,021 219,629 8,502,021 
Capiial leases 36,080 74,090 36,080 74.W 
State loans 2203357 3.199.049 14.654.179 15,246,646 16,857,536 18,445,695 . ... . .. -- . . . . . . ~ 

Federal loans 15,762,745 11,206,194 15,762,745 11,206,194 
Otherloans 361,631 380,407 361,631 380,407 

Total $ 23,407,144 $ 25,991,086 $ 30,778,555 $ 26,833,247 $ 54,185,699 $ 52824,333 

Allegany County issued refinancing general obligation debt in the amount of $ 14.2 million and retired 
$16.8 million in total during the current fiscal year as debt outstanding fell 10 percent. No new debt was 
issued during the year for governmental activities. 

Revenue debt in the amount of $ 1.4 million was incurred for the sewer districts for the Jennings Run and 
Braddock Road sewer projects. New debt for the water districts included $ 3.5 million the Mount Savage 
Water. Business type debt retired during the year was $1.3 million. 

In March, 2013, Allegany County's rating fiom Moody's upgraded from "Al" rating to "Aa3". In March 
of 2013 of Standard & Poor's raised the County's "A" bond rating to "A+", one of the few upgrades 
nationally for a govenunental entity. 

Additional information on Allegany County's long-term debt can be found in note 10 on pages C-50 
through C-54 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The unemployment rate for June 2013 for Allegany County was 8.6 percent, which was an increase 
from a 8.3 percent rate for June 2012. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing Allegany County's budget for the 2014 fiscal year 

During the current fiscal year, spendable fund balance in the general fund increased to $17.9 million. The 
use of the unexpended and available fund balance reduced the amount of tax, service charges and fee 
increases necessary to have a balanced budget for the 2014 fiscal year 

The sewer and water district m i n i m  service charges were increased for the 2014 budget year. Every 
effort will be made to contain costs during the year for the operations of the water and sewer systems. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Allegany County's finances for all those 
with an interest in the government's fmances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Allegany County Finance 
Director, 701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland 21502 or e-mail at finance(iiallconet.org. 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30,2013 

Primary Government Component Units 
Board Allegany Allegany LaVale 

Governmental Business-type of College of County Sanitary 
ASSETS: Activities Activitie Total Education Mwland Libray Commission 

C-nt Assets: 
$ 25,853,972 $ 770,226 $ 26,624,198 $ 15,423,760 $ 10,210,836 $ 133,959 $ 2,210,737 

Investments 6,943,084 471,378 7,414,462 18,020,500 202,155 847,359 
Propetty taxes receivable I cash 

5,982,527 5,982,527 
Receivables: ..... 

Accounts 
Other 

Internal balances 
Inventory 
Prepad expenses 
Deferred charges 
M~scellaneous 
Restricted Assets 

Cash 
Investments 
Taxes - recewal 

I Receivables 106.05l 106.051 
Total cwrent assets 46,377.027 5,466.067 51,843,094 39,753,675 24.826.550 990.527 3,146.680 
No"-current Assets: 

Long tern Investment, Market 90,876 
21,320,090 192,532 21,512,622 4,208,336 1,697,465 

Work In Progress 1,689,024 14,183,618 15,872,642 1,775,245 
I Other "on-depreciable assets 125,108 172,819 

Capital assets subject to 
devreciationiamonization 135,304.796 156.290.497 

Accumulated deprec~at~on (71.529.389) (57,284.4881 
Total nos-current assets 86,784.521 113,382.159 

Total Assets 133.161.548 118,848,226 

LIABILITIES: 
C m n t  Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 2,074,036 1,681,293 
Accrued wages payable 589,002 51,901 
Accrued fringe benefits payable 283,196 23,571 
Accrued interest 165,827 117,383 
Current portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds and loans 3,866,792 1,230,573 
Capital lease 17,520 
Compensated absences 818,617 71,738 

Due to Agency Fund 494,080 
Due to Trust Fund 1,299,916 
Unearned Revenue 468,972 
Accrued health claims 
Miseellaneou liabilities 1.224.391 320.754 

Total cment liabilities 11,302.349 3,497,213 
Non-current liabilities: 

Cash advance due general b d  
Bonds and loans 
Capital leases 
Premium on Bond Payable 
Termination benefits 
Compensated absences 
Total non-ewrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSlTION 
Net inveshnent in 

Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Public safeh, 
Highways 753,201 
Education 32,511 
Communiiy development & housing 263,722 

I Eeonomic development 
Capital projects 46,121 46,121 5,475,415 
Other vmoses 1,432.270 288.615 1.720.885 333.769 12.296.023 554.637 688.084 1 

I ~nrestricted' 
Total Net Position 

I The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. I 



Funclionsll'rograms 
Primary government:: 

Governmental activities: 
General government: 

Payment to data processing 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health 
Social services 
Education: 

Payment to public school system 
Payment to community college 

Recreation, culture & libraries: 
Payment to public library system 

Conservation of nahlral resources 
Community development and 

housine - 
Fconomt. de\elopmcnt 
Intcrerl on long term dcbl 

Total gu~crnmcntal actlvlllus 

Business-type activities: 
Water 
Sewer 
Other funds 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

Component unit": 
Board of Education 
Allegany College of Md. 
County Library 
LaVale Sanitary Commission 

Total component units 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT O F  ACTNITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

Expenses Expenses 
Before Indirect After 

Indirect Expense Expense Indirect Expense 
Allocation Allocation Allocation 

Program Revenues 

opera tin^ Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Services Contributions Contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Income taxes 
Other local taxes 
Appropriation from Allegany County 
Franchise tax 
Grants & contributions not restricted 

to specific programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Gain on saleiretirement of capital assets 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 
Total general revenues, transfers and special items 

Change in net position 
Net position -beginning, 
Net position -ending 

I The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 
F'rimary Government Component Units 

Governmental Business-Type Board of Allegany County LaVale Sanitary 
Activities Activities Total Education College of MD Library Commission 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral p a  of this statement 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2013 

I Revolving Other 1 
ASSETS: 

Cash 
Cash -restricted 
Investments 
InvestmentsXestricted 
Property tax receivable 
Receivables 

1 Notes and loans 
Other receivables 

Due from other funds 
Advances to other funds 
Inventory 
Prepaids 
Miscellaneous assets 

Total Assets 

General ~ u i l d i n ~ -  Governmental 
Fund Fund Funds Total 

$ 25,852,822 $ - $ 1,150 $ 25,853,972 
49,366 49,366 

3,883,689 3,059,395 6,943,084 
1,624,180 1,624,180 

6.1 15,527 6,115,527 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 1,249,727 $ 97,195 $ 727,114 
Accrued payroll 554,976 947 33,079 
Accrued payroll fringe 265,484 83 1 16,881 
Due to other funds 12,523,619 680,381 
Amounts held in escrow 884,681 168,981 
Unavailable Revenue 5,474,484 817.515 
Miscellaneous liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 19,699,784 8,869,191 5,514,608 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 40,820,984 $ 8,970,664 $ 7,958,559 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Other long -term assets are not available to pay current -period expenditures 
and are deferred in the funds. 

Long-term debt, including compensated absences, is not due and payable in 
the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds. 

Other long -term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Net position of govemmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral p a t  of this statement. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JLrNE 30,2013 

Revolving Other 
General Building Governmental 

REVENUES: Fund Fund Funds Total 
Taxes: 

Propem taxes $ 40,302,290 S - $ - $ 40,302,290 
Income taxes 24,249,252 24,249,252 
Other local taxes 4,085,281 426,766 4,512,047 

Licenses and permits 664,287 664,287 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 919,088 2,072,032 2,991,120 
State 9,858,196 30,750 1,020,633 10,909,579 
Other 547,001 (9,447) 537,554 

Service charges 1,284,293 473,942 1,758,235 
Fines and forfeitures 47,142 48,977 96,119 
Interest 119,829 6,693 126,522 
Miscellaneous 437,965 3,360,756 103,504 3,902,225 

Total Revenues 82,514,624 3,391,506 4,143,100 90,049,230 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 8,303,612 132,790 8,436,402 
Public safety 15,648,870 496,102 16,144,972 
Public works 9,171,239 1,947,508 11,118,747 
Health and Hospitals 438,291 438,291 
Social Services 1,378,693 1,378,693 
Education 29,754 29,754 
Recreation, culture and libraries 736,413 736,413 
Conservation of nahlral 

resources 239,976 239,976 
Community Development 

and Housing 38,000 980,262 1,018,262 
Economic development 1,273,429 416,937 1,690,366 
Miscellaneous 33,553 1,250 34,803 
Appropriation to 

other governments 1,347,973 1,347,973 
Payments to component units 38,080,712 38,080,712 

Debt Service: 
Principal 16,833,941 16,833,941 
Interest 1,083.63 1 1,083,631 

Capital Outlay: 
General government 705,391 705,391 
Public safety 50,335 50,335 
Public works 953,811 953,811 
Education 274,942 274,942 
Recreation, culture and libraries 
Economic development 
Miscellaneous 
Payments to component units 336,192 336,192 

Total Expenditures 76,720,515 416,937 23,796,155 100,933,607 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 5,794,109 2,974,569 (19,653,055) (10,884,3771 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 28,905 5,849,056 5,877,961 
Transfers out (4,042,145) (1,851,458) (77,825) (5,971,428) 
Debt issued-Refunding Bonds 14,736,467 14,736,467 
Capital leases 
Sale of capital assets 27,850 2,490,000 2,517,850 

Total Other Financing 
Sowces and uses (3,985,390) 638,542 20,507,698 17,160,850 

Net change in fund balances 1,808,719 3,613,111 854,643 6,276,473 

Fund balance, beginning 17,891,065 5,256,080 4,659,965 27,807,110 

Fund balance, ending $ 19,699,784 S 8,869,191 S 5,514,608 $ 34,083,583 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pslt of this statement. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EWENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page C-6) 
are different because: 

Net change in fund balances -total governmental funds (page C-12) $ 6,276,473 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which capital outlays exceed depreciation in the current period. 

Capital outlay $ 1,721,256 
Depreciation (3,925,092) (2,203,836) 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets 
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither bansaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental 
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar 
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement af activities. This amount is the net effect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Debt proceeds $ (14,736,467) 
Lease proceeds 
Effect of bond issuance costs 367,599 
Payment of principal 16,833,941 2,465,073 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in the governmental funds. 21,089 

Change in net position of governmental activities (pages C6-C7) $ 6,035,962 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ALLEGAYI COISTY, W,\RYLASU 
STATLhlElir OF NET POSITIOS 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
June 30,2013 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash: 
Cash 
Cash - restricted 

Investments 
Receivables: 

Acwunts (net) 
Taxes - restricted 
Accounts (net) - restricted 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Preoaid exoenses 

I Inventory 
Total current assets 

Nonsurrent Assets: 
Other receivables 
Land 
Canstluction in Progress 
Cmital assets subiect 

ia depreciationu 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total Assets 

Cunent Liabilities: I 
Acwunts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Acclued payroll fringe 
Accrued interest 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Allegany 
County 
Water 

Districts 

Allegany 
County 
Sanitary 
Districts 

Other 
Enterprise 

Funds Total 

~evenue  debt: 
Bonds and loans 144,934 1,085,639 1,230,573 
Other loans 18,956 438 19,394 
Compensated absences 71,738 71,738 

Due to other funds 7,825,803 7,825,803 
Miscellaneous liabilities 320,754 320,754 

Total current liabilities 375,036 10,940,941 26,433 11,342,410 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Cash advance due to General Fund 400,000 800,000 1,200,000 
Long term debt: 

Revenue debt: 
Bonds and loans 10,783,326 18,403,028 29,186,354 
Other loans 325.424 16R11 ?A7 717 - ..,... - .-,- - . 

Compensated absences 289,385 289,385 
Total noncurrent liabilities 11,508,750 19,509,226 31,017,976 

Total Liabilities 11,883,786 30,450,167 26,433 42,360,386 

NET POSITION 
Net inveshnent in capital assets 23,827,687 58,608,461 167,453 82,603,601 
Restricted far debt service 2RR 615 7RR hlC - . . , . . . 
Unrestricted 1,610,11711 11 175717) 1 :  

Total Net Position 5 25,438, 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE -ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Allegany Allegany 
County County Other 
Water Sanitary Enterprise 

OPERATING REVENUES: Districts Districts Funds Total 
Service charges $ 3,686,415 $ 5,444,477 $ 281,017 $ 9,411,909 
Miscellaneous 1,740 1,740 

Total Operating Revenues 3,688,155 5,444,477 281,017 9,413,649 ---- 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Salaries 299,928 782,666 1,082,594 
Employee benefits 160,402 415,377 575,779 
Off~ce expenses 91,737 11,331 103,068 
Utilities 2,195,309 346,862 7,912 2,550,083 
Repairs & maintenance 268,583 481,376 30,808 780,767 
Conhachlal services 2,363 22,131 24,494 
Treatment costs 2,721,473 2,721,473 
Professional services 786 21,764 143,009 165,559 
Materials and supplies 36,780 433,662 470,442 
Insurance 316 151,183 5,292 156,791 
Indirect wst 130,385 315,822 446,207 
Miscellaneous 524 9,427 9,951 
Depreciation 884,771 2,476,392 155,296 3,516,459 

Total operating expenses 3,980,147 8,269,872 353,648 12,603,667 
Operating lncome (Loss) (291,992) (2,825,395) (72,631) (3,190,018) 
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES): 

Real and personal property taxes 988,281 988,281 
Interest & penalties on taxes 25,165 25,165 
Discounts on taxes (4,911) (4,911) 
Enterpriselindustrial exemptions 
Collection fees (21,962) (21,962) 
Front footage assessments 101,207 101,207 
Interest income 131,496 175,962 1,990 309,448 
Interest income, debt service 2,452 2,452 
Interest expense (290,816) (352,578) (643,394) 
Gain (Loss) on sale 

of capital asses 
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (159,320) 913,616 1,990 756,286 
Income (Loss) before conhlbutions 

and transfers (451,312) (1,911,779) (70,641) (2,433,732) 
Capital contributions: 

Federal s a n e  1,605,225 335,783 1,941,008 
State grants 643,858 1,323,769 1,967,627 
Other 

Transfers: 
Transfers in 25,092 97,277 122,369 
Transfers out (28,905) (28,905) 

Change in net position 1,822,863 (154,950) (99,546) 1,568,367 

Total net position - beginning 23,615,702 57,926,709 1,564,496 83,106,907 
Total net position - ending $ 25,438,565 $ 57,771,759 $ 1,464,950 $ 84,675,274 

The nates to the financial statements are an integral pa~ I  of this statement. 



.AI.I.E(;ASY COIYTY, h l lRYIASD 
ST.\ I't'\lEVI 01.'C.\SH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY F19D TYPE - b.\TERPRISE Fl YDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

Allegany Allegany 
County County Other 
Water Sanitan Enternrise 

Cash flaws from operating activities: Districts 
Cash received from customers $ 3,832,651 

Total 
$ 9,194,741 

(7.126.620) Cash payments for goods and services (2,990,343) 
cash Laments to ekn~ovees for selvtces (460.330) . . . . 
Other operating revenues 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 381,978 

Cash flaws from noncaoital financine activities: 
Advances from other funds 5,542,853 
Advances to other funds (5,499,226) 
Transfers from other funds 251092' 
Transfers to other funds 

Net cash prov~ded (used) by 
noncapital financing activities 68,719 

Cash flows from caoital and related financine activities: 
Proceeds from capital debt 3,479,897 
Acquisition and ionstruction 

of capital assets (5,861,416) 
Principal paid on capital debt (158,655) 
Interest paid on capital debt (290,816) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Grant revenues 2,249,083 
Debt fees 

Net cash used for caoital and related 
financing activities (581,907) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments (203,666) 
Sale of investments 203.363 
Interest on investments 131;513 

Net cash used in investing activities 131,210 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of the year 
Cash at end of year 

Reconciliation of oacratine income to net cash nrovided bv ooeratine activities: 
Operating income (loss) S (291,992) $ (2,825,395) $ (72,631) 6 (3,190,018) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Deoreciation 884.771 2.476.392 155.296 3.516.459 
Provision for uncollectible accounts (1;023) (30;435) (311458) 
Change in assets &liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables (146,320) (470,846) 28,324 (588,842) 
(Increase) decrease in inventory (5,750) (5,750) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaids 
Increase (decrease) in acc'ts payable (63,458) 755,656 22,003 714,201 
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll (542) (542) 

Total adjustments 673,970 2,724,475 205,623 3,604,068 
Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities $ 381,978 $ (100,920) $ 132,992 S 414,050 

I The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
AGENCY FUND 
JUNE 30,2013 

Agency 
ASSETS: Fund 
Cash in custody of others 
Taxes levied for State: 

Taxes receivable - State $ 625,247 
Bay restoration fee 321,109 
Other receivables 2 
Taxes levied for Special Areas: 

Lonaconing, Town of $ 26,054 
Midland, Town of 7,071 
Westemport, Town of 85,149 
Cumberland differential 738 
Bel Air Special Tax Area 2,377 
Bowling Green Fire Co. 5,251 
Bedford Road Fire Co. 8,260 
Bowling Green Special Tax Area 4,390 
Cresaptown Ambulance 15,946 
Cresaptown Civic Imp. Assoc. 5,135 
Cresaptown Fire Co. 17,750 
Corriganville Light & Imp. 2,371 
Ellerslie Special Tax Area 1,881 
LaVale Volunteer Fire Dept. 19,270 
LaVale Rescue Squad 9,635 
LaVale Sanitary District 40,609 
McCoole Special Tax Area 1,297 
Moscow Light 909 
Mt. Savage Special Tax Area 2,451 
Potomac Park Special Tax Area 2,651 
Rawlings Fire Co. 5,591 

Sub-total special areas 264,786 
Due from other funds 494,099 

Total Assets $ 1,705,247 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable $ 494,104 
Am Special Areas 264,787 
Taxes payable - State 321,109 
AIP Bay restoration fee 625,247 

Total Liabilities $ 1,705,247 

NET POSITION 
Held in trust for pension benefits 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, .MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2013 

Fire and Rescue 
Pension Trust I 

ASSETS: 
Investments-Certificate of Deoosit 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other finds 
Hospital deposit 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts ~avable . . 
Health claim reserves 
Other Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION: 
Held in Trust for benefit payments 

Health Insurance Length of Service 
Trust Fund Award Program Fund 

$ 1,404,693 $ 861,114 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2013 

Fire and Rescue 
Health Insurance Pension Trust 

Change in net position 
Net position - beginning 
Net position - ending 

ADDITIONS: 
Contributions: 

Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 

Total contributions 
Other additions: 

Interest 
Insurance proceeds 

Miscellaneous 
Total other additions 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Benefits 
Administrative expenses 

Total deductions 

Trust Length of Service 
Fund Award Program Fund I 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. I 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Introduction 

Allegany County, Maryland (the County) was established in 1789. The County in 1974 adopted 
the Code Home Rule form of govemment provided in Article XI-F of the Maryland Constitution 
and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this form of government, the Board 
has the authority to enact, amend and repeal public local laws relating to the incorporation, 
organization and government of the county, including laws authorizing the issuance and sale of 
bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each member of the Board has one vote and, 
except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the Board is sufficient to enact any bill into law. 

In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator the Chief 
Administrative Officer of Allegany County responsible to the Board and charged with the 
administration of all County affairs. The Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board, 
direct and supervise the administration of all departments and agencies and perform all duties 
enumerated in the Allegany County Code Chapter 2, Article 1. 

The executive offices of the County are located at the County Office Complex, 701 Kelly Road, 
Cumberland, Maryland 21502. The County Commissioners' office telephone number is 301- 
777-591 1. The County's website can be viewed at www.allconet.org. 

The financial statements of Allegany County have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant County principles, 
policies and procedures are summarized in the following Notes to the Financial Statements. 

B. Reporting Entity 

The reporting entity includes Allegany County's departments and agencies (the primary 
government) and its component units, entities for which the govemment is considered to be 
financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate 
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that is legally separate from 
Allegany County. 

As a result of its evaluation, the County has concluded that the following are component units of 
Allegany County and should be included in the reporting entity: 

Blended Component Units - no external governmental units are blended in the combined 
financial statements. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

B. Reporting Entity - continued 

Discretely Presented Component Units - the component unit columns of the government wide 
financial statements include the financial data of the County's component units. They are 
reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. 

1. The Board of Education - operates the public school system. The Board of Education 
may not issue debt without the County's approval and the County provides a significant 
portion of the Board's funding. The members of the board are elected by the voters of 
Allegany County. 

2. The Allegany County Library - operates the County's Library system. The Library 
System may not issue debt without the County's approval. The County provides a major 
portion of the Library's funding and appoints the members of the board. 

3. The LaVale Sanitary Commission - provides water and waste treatment facilities for 
LaVale and surrounding areas. Allegany County has pledged its full faith and credit for 
the debt of the LaVale Sanitary Commission. The governing board is appointed by the 
County Commissioners. The County provides no operating subsidies to the LaVale 
Sanitary Commission. 

4. Allegany College of Maryland - offers two years of higher education to area residents. 
The College is fiscally dependent on Allegany County which provides a significant 
portion of the funding for its operations and the College can not issue debt without the 
approval of the Allegany County Board of Commissioners. The College has elected to 
report its financial information in accordance with GASB 34 special-purpose government 
type using the business-type activity model. 

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their 
respective administrative offices: 

Administrative Offices: 

Allegany County Board of Education LaVale Sanitary Commission 
108 Washington Street 1 Roselawn Avenue 
Cumberland, Maryland 21 502 LaVale, Maryland 21502 

Allegany County Library System Allegany College 
3 1 Washington Street 12401 Willowbrook Road 
Cumberland, Maryland 21 502 Cumberland, Maryland 21 502 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 1. Surnrnarv of Simificant Accounting Policies - continued 

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement 
of changes in net position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary 
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is 
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes or 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay the liabilities of 
the current period. For this purpose, the County considers property tax revenues to be available 
if they are collected within 60 days of the year-end and a 90-day availability period is used for all 
other general fund revenues. Other major revenue sources subject to accrual are income taxes, 
federal and state grants and service charges. All other governmental funds use a 90 day 
availability period for revenue recognition except for transit operations which uses a 120 day 
accrual period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when the payment is due. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued 

The following is a description of the governmental fund types of the County: 

1. General fund - the general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not 
accounted for and reported in another fund. 

2. Special revenue funds - are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt 
service or capital projects. 

3. Capital projects funds - are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition 
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. They exclude those types of 
capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds or assets that will be held in trust. 

4. Debt service funds - are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

The Revolving Building Fund is used to report the activity associated with the construction, 
operation and maintenance of County buildings used to enhance it economic development 
activities. The majority of revenue is derived from operating leases. 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Water Districts Fund accounts for the activities of twenty individual water districts in 
various unincorporated areas of the County. 

The Sewer Fund reports the activities of sixteen individual sewer districts in various 
unincorporated areas of the County. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

The Agency Fund accounts for taxes billed and collected for the State of Maryland, four 
municipalities and seventeen special taxing districts. 

The Health Insurance Trust Fund which accounts for the self-insurance activities which 
provides health insurance coverage for County's employees. 

The Fire & Rescue Pension Trust Length of Service Award Program Fund which accounts 
for activities which provides retirement benefits to fire & rescue volunteers. 

Public-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to 
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent 
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this 
same limitation. Allegany County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's water 
and sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather then as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the water and sewer funds are service charges. The water and 
sewer funds recognize as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of 
connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the 
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 
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Note 1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

E. Assets, liabilities, and netposition or equity 
1. Deposits and investments 

The County's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-tern investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the County to invest 
surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the United 
States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in 
accordance with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or 
other obligation for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are 
pledged, any bank or banks in the State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any 
building and loan association, in interest-bearing time deposit; andlor savings accounts, or in 
the Local Government Investment Pool. 

Investments for the County, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. 

2. Receivables and payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due tolfrom other funds" 
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the non- 
current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are 
reported as "due tolfrom other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "internal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund 
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not 
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

All trade receivables of the enterprise funds are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. 
The allowance accounts for trade accounts receivable for the water and sewer funds are 
comprised of 50% of the balance six to nine months of age and 100% of account balances in 
excess of nine months. The allowance account for the loan fund is based on the analysis of 
individual accounts the expected ability to collect those accounts. The allowance for 
property taxes receivable is one-half of one percent of the annual levy and is based on 
historical trends. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

E. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity - continued 

2. Receivables and payables - continued 

As of July 1, 1996, State law mandates owner-occupied residential property owners may 
elect to pay real property taxes under a semiannual or annual payment schedule. The first 
installment for a semiannual payment or the annual payment is due by September 30, and the 
second installment of a semiannual schedule is due December 31, of the tax year without 
interest. Any unpaid installments after January 1 are charged interest of 1.5% monthly. 
Property owners electing to pay real property taxes semiannually may not have delinquent 
taxes on the property. 

The assessment of all real and personal property for purposes of property taxation by the 
County is the sole responsibility of the State Department of Assessments and Taxation. Real 
property is valued at market value and is assessed at 100% of that value. The real estate 
assessment of 100% is the result of The Maryland Truth in Taxation Act, Chapter 80 of the 
Laws of Maryland of 2000 effective October 1, 2000. Prior to the law change, the 
assessment was 40% of the market value. Real property tax rates were adjusted to make the 
law revenue neutral. Tangible personal property is assessed at cost, less 10% depreciation 
for each year held, to a minimum of 25% of cost. The County granted tax differential rates to 
municipalities located within the County in accordance with Article 32A of the Annotated 
Code of Maryland which reduced the tax rates for owners of municipal property. The 
various tax rates for Allegany County for fiscal year 2013 are as follows: 

Unincorporated 
Barton 
Cumberland 
Frostburg 
Lonaconing 
Luke 
Midland 
Westernport 

Personal Proverty 
2.4525 
2.2230 
2.0927 
2.1090 
2.1637 
2.1550 
2.2230 
2.1755 

3. Inventories and prepaid items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in6rst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

E. Assets, liabilities, and netposition or equity - continued 

4. Restricted assets 

Certain revenues of the County's sewer funds are set aside for their repayment of loans used 
to fund construction of sewer systems. They are classified as restricted assets on the balance 
sheet because they are limited by State law and debt covenants to the repayment of debt or 
constmction. 

Sinking fund investment is classified as a restricted investment due to the fact that the 
investment is to be used for future debt repayment. 

5. Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets 
are defmed by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 
($50,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life of two years or more. Such 
assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, 
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 
Buildings 
SewerJWater Systems 
Other infrastructure 
Furniture & Fixtures 
Vehicles 
Equipment 
Heavy equipment 
Other capital assets 
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Note 1. Summan, of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

E. Assets, liabilities, and netpositions or equity - continued 

6. Compensated absences 

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation 
and sick pay benefits. All vacation pay and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is 
reported in govemmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations and retirements. 

A liability is accrued for certain future vacation, sick, and other leave benefits, provided the 
following conditions are met: 

a. The employer's obligation relating to employees' rights to receive compensation for 
future absences is attributable to employees' services already rendered. 

b. The obligation relates to rights that vest. 
c. Payment of the compensation is probable and not contingent on a specific event 

outside the control of the County or the employee. 
d. The amount can be reasonably estimated. 

County employees earn vacation time depending upon their length of service and are eligible 
to use this time in the year in which it is earned. Vacation time may be carried from one year 
to the next, but may not exceed 200% of the annual accrual at any point in time. Vacation 
time earned when the 200% ceiling has been reached is accrued as sick time and remains as 
such. All vacation time outstanding and earned upon leaving County service is paid to the 
employee at the current salary level. 

County employees earn fifteen sick leave days per year with no accumulation ceiling. It is 
the policy of the County to pay for up to 120 days, if earned, of sick leave accumulated, upon 
the retirement of most employees. Any reduction in the liability for compensated absences is 
charged to the fund and function where the employee's time was charged which historically 
has been the general fund, highway fund or the transit fund for the govemmental funds and 
the Sanitary Districts for the enterprise funds. 
At June 30, 2013, compensated absence liabilities for Allegany County are summarized as 
follows: 

Current Long-term Total 
Portion Portion Liability 

Total Governmental FundTypes $ 818,617 $ 3,197,800 $ 4,016,417 
Sanitary Districts 71,738 289,385 361,123 

$ 890,355 % 3,487,185 -40 
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Note 1. Summw of Significant Accountine Policies - continued 

7. Long-term obligations: 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type 
statement of net position. For debt acquired after July 1, 2003, bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, will be deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method. All debt acquired from July 1, 2003 through February, 
2013 has been private placement debt and as a result has not resulted in any premium or 
discount. During March, 2013, refunding debt was acquired. Bond issuance costs will be 
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

8. Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position: 

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position are divided into three components: 

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 
Restricted net position - consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use 
either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or 
regulations of other governments; or (2) law through enabling legislation. 
Unrestricted net position - all other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets". 

9. Governmental Fund Balances: 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a 
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 
Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of federal or 
state laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 
Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal resolution or ordinance by the Board of County Commissioners. Funds were 
committed in accordance with Resolution # 87-12 and # 11-16 
Assigned - Amounts that are constrained by the Board of County Commissioners or 
the Director of Finance, as provided by Resolution No. 10-17, for a particular purpose. 
Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 
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Note 1. Surnmarv of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

10. Because different measurement focuses and bases of accounting are used in the govemment- 
wide statement of net position and in govemment fund statements, amounts reported as 
restricted fund balances in governmental funds may be different from amounts reported as 
restricted net position in the statements of net position. 

1 1. Use of Restricted Resources: 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources 
(net assets), the County's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and 
then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the County's policy is to first 
apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive 
classifications - committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund 
balances. 

12. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles: 

In June 201 1, the GASB issued Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Znfows of Resources, and Net Position. GASB 63 provides guidance 
for reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and net position in 
a statement of financial position and related disclosures. GASB 63 requires that certain 
defined transactions, such as service concession arrangements and derivative instruments, 
that do not qualify for treatment as either assets or liabilities, be accounted for and reported 
as either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. Also the statement 
of net assets is renamed as the statement of net position and includes four components, 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15,201 1. 

GASB 63 has been adopted for FY 2013, however, the County had no deferred inflows or 
outflows to report. 

Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
Government-wide statement of net position. 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government- 
wide statement of net position. 
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Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements-continued 

One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term debt, including compensated 
absences, is not due and payable in the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds." 
The details of this $27,423,561 are as follows: 

Bonds payable $20,948,078 
Notes payable 219,629 
State loans 2,203,357 
Capital leases 36,080 
Compensated absences 4,016,417 

Net adjustments to reduce fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activites $27,423,561 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities. 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental finds and 
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement 
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital 
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of 
this $(2,203,836) difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - 
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets 
of governmental activities. ($2,203,836) 

Another element of that reconciliation states the "The net effect of various miscellaneous 
transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net 
assets." The details of this ($2,130,782) differences are as follows: 

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is 
reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale 
increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from 
the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. (2,130,782) 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in find balances-total 
governmental finds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental ($2,130,782) 
activities. 
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Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements-continued 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, 
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the 
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas 
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities." 

The details of this $2,465,073 difference are as follows: 

Debt issued or incurred: 
Debt proceeds 
Leases 
Bond issue costs, net of amortization 

Principal repayments: 
General obligation debt 16,795,93 1 
Lease payments 38,010 

Net adjustments to reduce fimd balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activites $2,465,073 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement of 
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds." The details of this $21,089 difference are as follows: 

Compensated absences 
Accrued interest adjustment, net 

Net adjustments to decrease net changes in h d  balances - 
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position 
of governmental activities. $21,089 

Note 3. Stewardshiv, Comvliance. and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted for all General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Project 
Funds. All governmental fund budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Encumbrances and appropriations generally lapse at year-end 
and are treated as expenditures in the year the liability is incurred. Budgets are adopted for the 
Enterprise Funds, though not required, on a revenue and expenditure basis to permit monitoring 
of the financial activity. Budgets to actual comparisons are presented in this report for all the 
primary government's major governmental fund types. 
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Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - continued 

Budget-to-actual comparisons for the non-major governmental funds, though not required, are 
presented as supplementary information Budget-to-actual comparisons are not required for 
component units and the enterprise funds and are not presented. 

The County uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. Prior to January 15, the County Administrator submits recommended budget 
guidelines to the Board of Commissioners for their approval. 

2. After receiving approval of the budget guidelines, the County Administrator and the 
Director of Finance meet with the various departments and agencies to explain and 
distribute the guidelines. 

3. The County Administrator and the Director of Finance compile all budget requests; 
after making departmental and agency review of the requests, a recommended budget 
is presented to the Board of County Commissioners for review and approval. 

4. A public hearing is held to obtain public input and opinion of a preliminary budget. 
5. Under Local Code Home Rule, the property tax rate must be set by June 30, and by 

that time, the budget is publicly adopted by the County Commissioners. 
6. During the year supplemental appropriations shall be made by public approval of the 

Board of Commissioners. Supplemental appropriations in the governmental funds for 
fiscal year 2013 were increased by $ 850,400 primarily due to using savings from 
debt refinancing to transfer money to the pay-go fund ($ 550,000). The other major 
budget change was $218,293 for various state grants received during the fiscal year. 

7. During the year, budget amendments within a department are approved by the 
Director of Finance. Budget amendments between departments and/or funds require 
Commissioner public approval. 

8. Legally, total expenditures for all individual governmental funds may not exceed the 
total budget for a particular fund except for emergencies, state-mandated programs, or 
by approval of a majority of the Board of Commissioners. 

9. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year for all funds, except the Capital 
Project Funds, and certain federal grants that do not have a year-end date of June 30. 

10. Budget monitoring is the responsibility of the Finance Department and the 
appropriate department head. 

The County has elected not to employ the use of encumbrance accounting for financial reporting 
purposes. The County utilizes an encumbrance-based accounting system for internal reporting. 
However, these encumbrances lapse at year-end. Accordingly, the County does not prepare 
budgetary basis statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance. 

B. 
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the year ended June 30,2013, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds 
(the legal level of budgetary control): 
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Note 3. Stewardshiv. Comvliance, and Accountability - continued 

Fund Excess 

Block Grant Fund $ 1.703 
Community Development & Housing Fund 9781559 
Debt service Fund 12,701,352 
Gaming Fund 124,530 
Public Improvement Bond Fund 651,082 
Pay Go Fund 689,194 

The expenditures over budget in the Block Grant Fund were funded by revenues that 
were not budgeted. 
The Community Development & Housing Fund excess expenditures over budget were 
funded by grant revenues which were not budgeted due to grant approval at year end. 

a The Debt Service Fund excess expenditures over budget were funded with current bond 
proceeds. 
The Gaming Fund excess expenditures over budget were funded by unexpended fund 
balance. 
The Public Improvement Bond Fund expenditures over budget were funded with current 
bond proceeds and unexpended bond proceeds. 
The Pay-Go fund excess expenditures over budget was funded with unexpended fund 
balance and revenues that were not budgeted. 

C. Deficit Fund Equity 
At June 30,2013, one governmental fund, the Capital Improvements Project Fund, had a deficit 
fund balance in the amount of ($ 11,060). 

Note 4. Deposits and Investments 

Allegany County Primary Government: 
As of June 30,2013, the County had the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Maturity in Months 
Fair Less Greater 

Investment Type Value 'Ihan 1 1-6 6-12 than 12 
Statement of Net Position 

Certificates of Deposit $ 7,414,462 $ 64,047 $ 7,350,415 $ - $ 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 1,624,180 14,281 28,069 27,903 1,553,927 
Total Stmt ofNet Position $ 9,038,642 $ 78,328 $ 7,378,484 $ 27,903 $1,553,927 

Employee Benefit 
Trust-Cert of Deposit $1,404,693$ - $ 1,404,693 $ - $ 

Fire & Rescue Pension 
Trust LOSAP Fund $ 861,114 $ 861,114 $ - $ 

Group Annuity Fixed $ 861,114 $ 861,114 $ - $ 
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In Note 4. Deposits and Investments-continued 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates, 
the County's investment policy prohibits investments that mature more than 2 years from the date of 
purchase. However, the County may collateralize its repurchase agreements using longer dated 
investments. Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding 2 years if the maturity of such 
investments is made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds. 

Credit Risk - The County investment policy and State law requires collateralization of 102% of market 
value of investments. ARTICLE 95, Section 220f the Annotated Code of M q l a n d  authorizes the 
County to invest surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the 
United States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in accordance 
with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or other obligation for the 
payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged, any bank or banks in the 
State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any building and loan association, in interest- 
bearing time deposit; andlor savings accounts, or in the Local Government Investment Pool. Allegany 
County is in compliance with its investment policy and State law having all deposits and investments 
collateralized at 102% of market value with bonds or other obligations secured by the full faith and 
credit of the United States. Allegany County has no policy relating to the credit risk of investments. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The County investment policy limits investments of the portfolio to 5% 
of Bankers Acceptances, 5% to money market mutual funds, and 5% to commercial paper. The County 
investment policy complies with Maryland state law limits. 

Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not 
covered by depository insurance and the deposits are: 

a. Uncollateralized 
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 
c. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or 

agent but not in the depositor-government's name 

The County carries its investments at fair value. Investments consist mostly of nonparticipating 
contracts (nonnegotiable certificates of deposit) with maturities of less than one year. The only other 
type of investment is U.S. Treasury obligations held by the debt service sinking fund. 

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Allegany County Board of Education 

Cash deposits - At year-end, the canying amount of the Board's, not including it's 
component units, deposits was $16,618,440 and the bank balances were $17,505,895. Of 
the bank balances, $855,016 was covered by depository insurance; $16,650,879 was 
covered by collateral held at various banks in the Board's name. 
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments-continued 

Investments - As of June 30,2013, the Board of Education had the following investments 
and maturities: 

Investment Maturity (in months) 
Less than More than 

Investment Type Total 1 1-6 6 1 2  12 

Certficates ofDeposit $ 22,578,548 $ - $ 13,269,651 $ 9,226,856 $ 82041 
$ 22,578,548 '$ - $ 13,269,651 $ 9,226,856 $ 82,041 

Allegany County Library System 

Cash - Risks and Policies 

As of June 30,2013, the carrying amount of the Library's deposits was $133,959. 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the 
Library's deposits may not be returned of the Library will not recover collateral securities 
in the possession of an outside party. The Library's policy requires deposits with 
financial institutions to be fully secured by collateral. The Library's cash balances at 
financial institutions at June 30, 2013 are fully collateralized with securities held by the 
Library's agent in the Library's name. 

Investments - Risks and Policies 

As of June 30,2013, the Library had the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Maturity 
Less than W Days Over aedi t  

Investment Type Total W Days to One Year One Year Rating 
U.S. Treasury Bands $ 19,776 $ $ 19,776 NIA 
Other Federal Government 

Obligations 418,900 418,900 NIA 
Investment in MD b c a l  

Government Fund Pool 408,683 408,683 - NIA 
$ 847,359 $ 408,683 $ - $ 438,676 

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Allegany County Librarv Svstem (Continued) 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfill its obligations. The Library investment policy specifies with the exception of U.S. 
Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 5% of Bankers acceptance, 5% of 
money market mutual funds and 5% to commercial paper. 
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Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk 
of adverse interest rate changes. The Library policy provides that to the extent 
practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows. Unless matched to a 
specific cash flow, the Library will not directly invest in securities maturing more than 
one year from the date of purchase. Reserve funds may be invested in securities 
exceeding one year if the maturity of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as 
practicable with the expected use of the funds. 

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the 
Library's investment in a single issuer. With the exception of U.S. Government 
securities and authorized pools, the Library may not invest in no more than 5% of 
Bankers Acceptance, 5% of money market mutual funds, and 5% of commercial paper. 
The Library's investment policy complies with Maryland State Law limits. 

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the 
Library will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in 
the possession of an outside party. Library policy provides that investment collateral is to 
be held by a third party custodian with whom the Library has a current custodial 
agreement in the Library's name. All of the Library's investments are collateralized with 
securities held by the Library's agent in the Library's name. The Library is in 
compliance with its investments policy and State law having all deposits and investments 
collateralized at 102% of market value with bonds and other obligations secured by the 
full faith and credit of the United States. 

LaVale Sanitarv Commission 

Cash deposits - At year-end, the carrying amount of the LaVale Sanitary Commission's 
cash deposits was $2,883,765. The entire bank balance was either covered by federal 
depository insurance or by pledged government securities. The commission held no 
investments at year end. 

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units - continued: 

Allegany College 

Cash deposits - At year-end, the carrying amount of the Allegany College's, not 
including its component units, cash deposits was $ 978,664. 
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JUNE 30,2013 

Note 4. Deposits and Investments - continued 

The bank balance was fully collateralized with securities held by the college's agent in 
the College's name. 

Less Than 90 Days 
Investment Type Total 90 Days To One Year 
Certificates of deoosit $ 202,155 $ $ 202,155 
Repurchase agreements of 

U.S. Government obligations 501,598 501,598 
Maryland Local Government 

Investment Pool 8,615,206 8,615,206 
$ 9,318,959 $ 9,116,804 $ 202,155 

Note 5. Property Taxes Receivable 

Property taxes are levied each July 1 and due on or before September 30 of that year. Unpaid property 
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of October 1. Property tax assessments are 
performed by the State of Maryland on which the County bills and collects its property taxes. 

Property tax receivable at June 30, 2013 was $6,115,527 (before an allowance of $133,000) of which 
$3,559,932 were current year's taxes receivable and the balance of $2,555,595 was prior years' unpaid 
taxes. 

Note 6. Other Receivables 

Receivables, other than property taxes receivable and loans to the County's enterprise funds, as reported 
in the Statement of Net Position as of the year end for the County's individual governmental major 
funds, non-major funds and in the aggregate, consist of the following: 

Income t a m  

Acemed revenues 
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Note 6. Other Receivables-continued 

Receivables as reported in the Statement of Net Position at year end for the County's individual 
enterprise major funds, non-major funds and in the aggregate, consist of the following: 

Accounts, other 

Accounts, trade 
Less allowance 

Net accounts, trade 

Accounts,restricted 
Less allowance 

Net accounts, restricted 

Less allowance 

Leases - Operating and Capital: 

The County, as part of its economic development efforts, has constructed numerous shell 
buildings which are sold (capital leases) or rented (operating leases) to various employers. The 
amount of capital lease payments and future minimum non-cancelable operating lease payments 
due each of the next five years and beyond is as follows: 

Capital Leases Operating Leases 
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Minimum Payments 

2014 $ - $ - '$ - $ 3,197,450 
2015 - 3,176,144 

. ~.~~~ 
2019- 885,728 

Totals $ - $ - $ - $ 14,278,972 

The net book value of buildhgs with operating leases at June 30,2013 is $14,540,135. 

Unearned Revenue: 

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental 
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but 
not yet earned. 
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Note 6. Other Receivables-continued 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the 
governmental funds were as follows: 

Unearned revenue recorded as a receivable which are not considered 
available to liquidate liahililes of the current period: 

Delinquent property taxes receivable, General Fund $ 5,446,520 
Unearned grant revenue $ 468,972 
Long term housing loans receivable 376,507 

$ 6,291,999 

Loans receivable: 

The following table summarizes the loan receivable balances in the County Loan Fund at 
June 30,2013: 

Scenic Raiboad 

General Fund 

Allconet I1 Fund loans: 
General Fund 

The County has established a Loan Fund to account for the long-term receivables due from other 
entities and the proprietary funds. Except for the payments received from fire companies, which 
is a revolving pool, the cash receipts are transferred to the General Fund, as they become 
available. 
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Note 7. Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2013 for the primary government was as follows: 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 21,320,090 
1,689,Me. 

23,009,114 

61,079,260 
48,673,041 

1,028,733 
9,883,758 
9,692,442 
4,022,939 

924,623 
135,304,796 

(21,934,435) 
(29,985,281) 

(742,363) 
(7,M2,059) 
(7,778,060) 
(3,509,lV 

(538,014) 
(71,529,389) 

63,775,407 

% 86,784,521 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 192,532 
14,183,618 
14,376,150 

256,346 
145,875,861 

17,681 
5,424,077 
1,103,684 

775,785 
2,837,063 

156,290,497 

(154,871) 
(49,220,129) 

(16,756) 
(4,923,699) 

(863,839) 
(581,250) 

(1,523,944) 
(57,284,488) 

99,0.%,009 

$ 113,382,159 

Primary Government 
Governmental activities: 
Capitalassets, notbeing depreciated: 

Land 
Work in Progress 

Total caprtll assets notbeing depreciated 

Capitalassets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Infraseuchlre 
Furnihre &Fixtures 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Heavy Equipment 
Other Caprtll Assets 

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 

Less accumulated depreciation far: 
Buildings 
In6as~ucture 
Furniture & Fixtures 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Heavy Equipment 
Other Caprtll Assets 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capitalassets, being depreciated,n$ 

Increases 

$ - 
897,398 
897,398 

156,532 
51,460 
24,579 

420,290 
157,653 
13,347 

823,861 

(1,850,361) 
(728,633) 
(48,404) 

(621,723) 
(549,528) 
(114230) 
(12,211) 

(3,925,090) 

(3,101,229) 

$(2,203,831) 

Increases 

$ - 
8,533,994 
8,533,994 

77,258 

70,301 
37,286 

184,845 

(8.902) 
(2,953,875) 

(615) 
(249,788) 
(108,763) 
(67,865) 

(126,650) 
(3,516,458) 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 21,320,090 
2,204,724 

23,524,814 

63,101,128 
47,768,987 

989,653 
9,472,063 
9,210,587 
3,899,503 

924,623 
135,366,544 

(20,138,534) 
(29,256,648) 

(693,959) 
(6,428,931) 
(7,292,379) 
(3,435,970) 

(525,803) 
(67,772,224) 

67,594,320 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 108,179,778 $ 5,202,381 - 

Decreases 

$ - 

(2,178,400) 

(8,595) 
(64,814) 
(46,898) 

(2,298,707) 

54,460 

8,595 
63,847 
41,023 

167,925 

(2,130,782) 

$(2,130,782) 
- 

Decreases 

$ - 

(77,527) 

(77,527) 

77,527 

77,527 

0 

I 
Governmentalactivitiescapitalassets,ne$ 91,119,134 

Transfers 
In (Out) 

$ - 
(1,413,098) 
(1,413,098) 

852,594 
14,501 

389,016 
156,987 

1,413,098 

1,413,098 

$ - 

Transfers 
in (Out) 

$ - 
(2,892,396) 
(2,892,396) 

5,035 
2,769,759 

78,268 
39,334 

2,892,3% 

2,892,396 

$ - 

- 
Primry Government 
Business-vpe activities: 
Capitalassets, notbeing depreciated: 

Land 
Work in Progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Caprtll assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Infrastucture 
Furniture &Fixtures 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Heavy Equipment 
Other Capital Assets 

Totaleapitalassets, being depreciated: 

Less accumulated deprecktion for: 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Furniture & Flxtures 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
H e a ~  Equipment 
Other Capitsl Assets 

Totalaccumulated depreciation 

Totalcapital assets, being depreciated, 

$ - 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 192,532 
8,542,020 
8,734,552 

251,311 
143,028,844 

17,681 
5,275,508 
1,104,591 

775,785 
2,837,063 

153,290,783 

(145,969) 
(46,266,254) 

(16,141) 
(4,673,911) 

(832,603) 
(513,385) 

(1,397,294) 
(53,845,557) 
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Note 7. Capital Assets - continued 

Depreciation expense was charged to hctions/programs of the primary government, as reported 
in the statement of activities, for the year ended June 30,2013 as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 319,036 
Public safety 1,238,595 
Public works 965,627 
Health 218,440 
Social services 170,318 
Recreation, culture and libraries 146,354 
Community development and housing 15,063 
Economic development 851,657 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,925,090 

Busmess type activites: 
Water districts $ 884,771 
Sewer districts 2,476,392 
Allconet I1 155,296 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,516,459 

Construction Commitments 

The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2013. The projects include industrial 
park infrastructure and water quality and service improvements. At year end the County's 
commitments with contractors are as follows: 

Remaining 
Project Spent-to-date Commibnent 

Burbridge bulding $ 2,638,825 $ 25,000 
Corrigansville Pump Station 851,400 111,350 
Rawlings Water Transmission Lme 675,791 880,313 
Jennings Run Sanitary Rehab 179,971 1,176,648 
Mount Savage Water Tank 2,178,297 489,678 
Mount Savage Water Distribution 2,312,054 3,466,916 

Totals $ 8,836,338 $ 6,149,905 

Funding for all projects is a combination of federal andlor state grants and a local share h d e d  
by long-term debt. Funding for the projects was in place prior to the commencement of 
construction. 
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Note 7. Cauital Assets - continued 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Capital asset activity for the Board of Education of Allegany County for the year ended June 30, 
2013 (not including component units), was as follows: 

. . 

Work in process 
Total capital assets notbeing 1,817,650 

Board of Education 
Governmental activities: 
Capitalassets,notbeiny denreelated: I I I I 

Beginning 
Balance 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land Improvements 
Buildings & Improvements 
Furniture, Equipment& Vehicles 

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land Improvemen& 
Buildings & Improvements 
Furniture, Equipment& Vehicles 

Totalaccumulated depreciation 

Board of Education 
Business-type activmes: 
Caphl assets,notbeing depreciated: 

Work in process 
Capitalassets, being depreciated: 

Furniture, Equipment& Vehicles 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Bulldings & Improvements 
Furniture &Equipment 
Vehicles/Bookmobile 

Buildings & Improvemnts 
Furniture &Equipment 
Vehicles/Bookmobik 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated,n 

Increases 

8,757,718 
150,013,882 
17,695,752 

176,467,352 

(1,585,842) 
(78,844.01 1) 
(9,585,793) 

(90,015,646) 

I 
Business-type activities capihl assets, net $ 151,858 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 86,451,706 

I 
Governmental activities capital asseb, net $90,775,390 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ - 

584,605 
(432,747) 

Transfers1 
Decreases 

294,221 
1,232,610 

810.W6 
2,336,837 

(451,595) 
(3,941,092) 
(1,583,407) 
(5,976,094) 

Total capital asse&, being depceciated.net 151,858 
I 

Capital asset activity for the Library of Allegany County for the year ended June 30,2013 was as 
follows: 

I 
$ (31,059) $ - 

Ending 
Balance 

(3,639,257) 

$ (1,821,607) 

Increases 

$ - 

(31,059) 

$ 120,799 

- 
(228,826) 
(228,826) 

- 
368,621 
368,621 

(31,059) 

9,051,939 
151,246,492 
18,276,932 

178,575,363 

(2,037,437) 
(82,785,103) 
(10,800,579) 
(95,623,119) 

139,795 

$ (17,958) 

Decreases 

$ - 

82,952,244 

88,935,825 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 

584,605 

(463,806) 
- -izK 
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Note 7. Caoital Assets - continued 

Discretely Presented Component Units - continued: 

Capital asset activity for Allegany College of Maryland and its component units for the year 
ended June 30,2013, were as follows: 

Library Colleotlons 
Work in Progress 

Total capitalassee notbehg depreciate 

Auxiliary Equipment 

Total capitalassets, being depreciated: 

Capital asset activity for the LaVale Sanitary Commission for the year ended June 30,2013, was 
as follows: 

Work in Progress 
Total capitalassets notbeing depreciate 

Machinery, Vehicles &Equipmnt  
Office Furniture and Eqipment 

Total capitalasses, being depreciated: 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
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Note 8. Interfund Receivables. Pavables. and Transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30,2013, is as follows: 

A. Due to/fi.om other funds 

Due From I Due To I 
Other Funds I Other Funds 

Governmental funds: I I 
General Fund 
Revolvmg Buildii Fund 

/ $ 8,762,01; 1 $ 12,523fl" 

Non-major Governmental Funds 2,183,388 680,381 
Sub-total 

Enterprise Funds: 
Water Districts 971,770 
Sanitaly Districts 6,423,952 7,825,803 
Non-major Enterprise Funds 894,664 

Sub-total 8,290,386 7,825,803 
Fudiciaty Funds: 

Agency Fund 494,099 

disbursement function. This results in funds having a deficiency or excess of cash 
depending on the timing of the receipt of revenues or other sources andlor the payment of 
expenditures (or expenses) or other uses of cash. 

Health Insurance Trust Fund 
Sub-total 

B. Advances and Loans To/From Other Funds 

1,299,916 1 
1,794,015 1 

TOTALS I $ 21,029,803 1 $ 21,029,803 

The interfund balances as of June 30,2013 are the result of a centralized cash receipt and 

Advances to 
Other Funds 

Advances: 
General Fund $ 1,200,000 

Sanitary iytricts 
Water Districts 

Loans: 
Loan Fund 361,631 

Allegany County Sanitary Dkt"cts: 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Long-terndebt 

AUegany County Water Districts: 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Long-terndebt 

$ 1,561,631 

Advances fmm 
Other Funds 

$ 800,000 
403.m 

438 
16,813 

18,956 
325,424 

$ 1,561,631 
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Note 8. Interfund Receivables. Pavables. and Transfers (continued) , , 

The amounts owed to thc G~meral li~nd iron1 the Sanitary District Funds and thc amounts o\\ed to 
the County Loan Fund from the Sanitary District and Water District Funds are reported as 
advances to indicate that such amounts are long-term assets and are not to be considered as 
"available spendable resources." 

C. Transfers 

Transfers to other funds for the year ending June 30,2013 are as follows: 

General Fund transfers to the non-major governmental funds were to fund the local share of 
grant funded programs and to pay debt service. Transfers to the enterprise funds were to assist in 
operating costs and debt service. Transfers from the Revolving Building Fund were to pay debt 
service costs of County economic development buildings and to pay for economic developments 
share of expenditures in other funds. 

Transferred From: 
Transferred To: 

Fromthe GeneralFund to: 
Non-major funds governmental funds 
Enterprlse funds: 

Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

Fromme Revolving Building Fund To: 
General Fund 
Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 
Nan-major funds governmental funds 

Fromthe Nan-major Governmental Funds to: 
General Fund 
Other Non-major governmental fund 

Frornthe Non-major Enterprlse Funds to: 
General Fund 

TOTALS 

Payments to component units for the year ending June 30,2013 are as follows: 

Board of Education 
Board of Educatio~ Data Processin 

Amount 

$ 3,946,623 

5,744 
89,776 

0 
19,348 
7.500 

1,824,610 

77,825 

28,905 

$ 6,000,331 

Total By 
Fund 

$ 4,042,143 

1,851,458 

77,825 

28,905 

$ 6,000,331 
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Note 9. Short-term Debt 

Allegany County did not issue short-term debt during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 and had no 
balance payable at year end. 

Note 10. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Compensated Absences 

Long-term liability activity of the County for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows: 
I I 

Lone-termDebt 
Governmental Activities 

Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Within . . 
Balance Issued Rehed Balance One Year 

General Obligation $ 14215,926 $ 14,240,030 $ (7,507,848) $ 20,948,078 $ 3,416,195 . 
Notes 
CavimlLeases* 
Stlte Loans 3,199,049 (995,692) 2,203,357 443,884 
Total $ 25,991,086 $ 14,24L,,000 $ (16,823,942) $ 23,407,144 $ 3,884,312 - 

*The netbook value ofleased vehiclesatJune 30,2013 isS21.876. 

Business-type activities 
Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Wimin 

Water dkh-icm: Balance Issued Reked Balance One Year 
Ruraldevelopmentloans $ 7,542,060 $ 3,387,917 $ (135,945) $ 10,794,032 $ 140,957 
Maniland water aualihi loans 46.602 91.980 (4.353) 134.229 3.977 . . . .  . 
County loans 36Z737 (18,357) 344,380 18,956 

Total water dkh-tic5 7,951,399 3,479,897 (158,655) 11,272,641 163,890 

Sewer districts: 
Maryland water quality bans 91,084 377,230 (72,476) 395,838 43,545 
Maryland envionmenfal loans 15,108,%0 (984,848) 14,124,112 975,673 
Ruraldeveloomentloans 3.664134 1.364478 159.899) 4.968.713 66.423 ~. , .~ ~ , ~. . , 
Other loans 17,670 (419j 17,251 438 

Total sewer distich 18,881,848 1,741,708 (1,117,642) 19,505,914 1,086,079 

Total business-type activities: 
Maryland water quality loans 137,686 469,210 (76,829) 530,067 47,522 
Maryland envionmentalloans 15,108,960 (984,848) 14,124,112 975,673 
Rural development loans 11,206,194 4,752,395 (195,844) 15,762,745 207,380 
Other loans 380,407 (18,776) 361,631 19,394 

Totalbusiness-typeactivitie $ 26,833,247 $ 5,222,605 $ (1,276,297) $ 30,778,555 $ 1,249,969 

Other Long-termldabilities 

Govcrnmrntal Activities 
Beginning Current Ending Due Within 
Balance Year Changes Payments Balance One Year 

Compensated Absences $ 3,941,378 $ 303,248 $ (228,209) $ 4,016,417 $ 818,617 

Busioess-type activities 
Water & sewer dish-icb 

Compensated absences $ 356,279 $ 20,998 $ (16,154) $ 361,123 $ 71,738 
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Note 10. Lone-Term Debt. Caoital Leases and Comaensated Absences - continued 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County's governmental activities long-term 
debt outstanding as of June 30,2013 are as follows: 

Ending GeneraIObEsation Bands Notes CapitalLeases State Loans Totals 

June30. Principal hterest Principal hterest Principal hterest Princi~al Interest Princbal interest 
2014 $ 3,416,195 $ 583,565 $ 6,714 S 12,533 $ i7.50 $ 2,143 $ 443,884 $ 55,225 S 3,884,312 $ 653,466 
2015 2,611096 495,591 7,106 12,142 18,560 1102 300,349 35,360 2,937,111 544,195 
2016 3,Bl,233 428,165 7,520 11727 - 278,305 26,740 3,477,038 466,632 
2017 3,266,551 328,066 7,959 11289 - 248,30 18,548 3,522,829 357,903 
2018 5393,114 225,253 8,423 10,824 - 237,697 33,844 560,234 249,921 

2019-2023 4,269,908 822,126 50,085 46,154 - 714,803 i7,365 5,034,796 885,645 
2024-2028 2,800,000 187,038 66,498 29,741 2,866,498 216,779 
2029-2033 - 65,320 8,632 65,320 8,632 
2034-2038 0 0 0 

2039-2043 0 0 ------ 0 -  
$ 20.948.077 $ 3,069,804 $ 219.625 $ l43.042 $ 36,079 S 3.245 S 2,203,357 $ 167,082 11 --- 

h u a l  debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County's business-type activities long-term 
debt outstanding as of June 30,2013 are as follows: 
I I I The annual debtsewice requl-ements tomablnty forthe W a t e r b h c b  long-term debtou6tmding atJune 30,2033 are: I 

Year Ending Famen &me Admin. Loans Water OuaIitvMX Loans Omer Loans Totals 
June 30. Princioal hterest Pncival  hterest Princival hterest Prineiaal hterest 

2014 $ !40,957 $ 305,534 $ 3,971 $ 1647 $ 18,956 $ 12,530 163,890 $ 319,711 
20 l5 16L597 333.325 4.028 1598 19.574 lL912 185~199 346835 

~~~ ~~ 
-~~ .~ - 

2019-2023 5256,302 5367,955 2 < k l  6,452 118,063 38,567 5396,032 54x974 
2W2028 5479,951 5143,734 27,811 5,086 41911 22,286 5549,673 5l71106 
20292033 5686,634 805442 24,560 3,629 29,056 l5,873 5740,250 820,944 
20342038 5759,640 597,392 25221 TO78 36,373 8,257 5817334 m.727 
2039.2043 5444,617 346,wO 18,587 533 i7,802 977 5485,W6 347,580 
20442048 1215,282 174,401 0 0 Ul5,282 l74.401 
20492053 986.184 46.328 0 0 986.184 46.328 
Tot& $ 10.794.032 $ 6.027.54616 334229 $ 25.4% $ 3 4 4 . 3 8 0  $ l42.216 11272.641 $ 6.B5.258 

The annual debt sewice requirements to maturity for me Sanitary hshc ts  long-term debt outstanding atJune 30,2033 are: 

Year Ending Water Oualitvbans M. Envimnmental Lams Famen Home Admin. Loans OmerLoans Totals 
June 30. Princi~al Interest P ~ c b a l  hterest Princi~al hterest Princi~al hterest Princiual hterest 

2014 $ 43,545 $ 6,687 $ 975,673 6 185,703 $ 66,423 $ 162,085 $ 438 $ 779 $ 5086,079 $ 355,251 
2015 43,169 5,529 987,905 169,468 72,758 167,858 458 758 5104,290 343,633 
2016 36,185 4,324 5W0,308 161065 87,086 160,984 479 737 LW,058 327,310 
2017 35,201 3,731 5012,885 148,488 90,063 158,037 501 715 1338,650 310,941 
2018 35,673 3259 5025,637 335,735 93, W 154.916 524 693 5154,988 294,603 

2019-202 75,634 15548 5,247,454 485033 516.40 723,931 3,004 3,078 5,842,511 1219,590 
ZllZb2028 68,328 6,856 3,794,982 159,038 633,553 626,819 3,761 2,321 4,480,624 795,034 
2029-2033 58,103 2,051 79,268 877 735038 495,536 4,708 13% 873,087 499,860 
20342038 780,991 371228 3,378 273 784,369 375501 
2039-2043 810,941 238,449 810,941 238,449 
20442048 816,206 90,080 816.206 90.080 
2049-2053 290.111 16.012 290.111 
Totals $ 395.838 $ 43.985 $ 14,124.112 $ 
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Note 10. Long-Term Debt, Cavital Leases and Comoensated Absences - continued 

A summary of individual long-term debt balances for governmental activities for the current and prior 
year is as follows: 

Akgany County Primary Government 
Schedule of Long - Term General Obligation Debt: 

General Obligation Bonds: Date of Date of Interest June 30, 
Public Improvement Bonds: Issue Maturity Rate (%) 2013 2012 

Bonds of 1998 08/15/98 08/01/13 4.375-4.65 1,360,000 2,655,000 
Bonds of 2001 09101101 11/01/16 3.50-4.40 0 1,875,000 
Bonds of 2004 10/26/04 10/01/19 3.50 1,105,000 1,242,000 
Bonds of 2006 07/21/06 08/01/16 4.24 1,365,000 1,670,000 
Bonds of 2007 06/12/07 06101117 5.73 0 3,451,344 
Bonds of 2008 12/16/08 09/01/18 4.36 2,878,078 3,322,582 
Bonds of 2013-Nontax 03/11/13 03/11/27 2.11 9,640,000 0 
Bonds of 2013-Taxabk 03/11/13 03/11/17 1.48 4,600,000 0 

Notes: 
Farmers Home Admin 1992 2032 5.75 219,629 225,974 
RDA High School Loan 06/28/07 06/28/37 4.125 0 4,099,832 
RDA Hgh School Loan 02/28/08 2038 4.375 0 4,176215 

CapitalLeases: 
Transit Bus 04111106 04/11/13 5.94 36,080 74,090 
Bureau of Police vehick 04/13/09 04/13/11 6.60 

State Loans: 
Md Industrial Land Act: 

Superfos Expansion 1991 2017 6.90 225,862 281,463 
Blue Cross Bldg 1992 2012 6.80 0 587,676 
Micro - Integratbn 1994 2014 5.93 30,053 113,675 
Superfos I11 1995 2014 5.93 146,953 257,017 

MICW Loans: 
PPG Purchase 01/05/96 2020 5.00 1,157,053 1260,325 
PPG Improvements 2001 2022 4.69 116,355 133,057 

MD Historical Trust Loan 2000 2020 1.00 145,000 146,000 
Md Environmental Loan 2003 2023 0.89 382,081 419 836 -- 

Total Long - Term General Obligation Debt 23,407,144 25,991,086 
Compensated Absences 4,016,417 3,941,378 

Total long-term liabilities $ 27,423,561 $ 29,932,464 
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Schedule afBusiness-type Debt 

I  ate of   ate of lnterest 
Water Disuicb Debt Issue Maturity Rate (%) 

EckhartFHALoan 1991 SeriesA W21/91 2013 6.0 
EckhartFHA Loan 1991 Series B W21191 2013 6.0 
EckharUClarysville RDALoan ' 04/17/11 2051 2.5 

I ~orden l~hdman  FHA Loan 1998 10122197 -- 1 CarlosIShafl FHA Loan 2WO 12/28/99 
Oldtown Rd FHA Loan ZhX)R-l 12/28/99 
Oldtown Rd FHA Loan 2000 R-2 12/28/99 
Grahmtown FHA Loan 2001 R-2 2001 
Consol FHA loan 20M 
McCoole FHA Loan 1999 
Barton IndustialPark 2005 
Klondike FHA 2005 
Maranmwn FHA Loan 2005 
Mexico Farms 1992 
Bowmans Addition RDALoan ' 10/01/10 
Bowmans Addition Phase 2RDA' 12/16/11 
Bedford RdIShades Lane MDE ' 06/28/12 
Cresavtown RDALaan ' 06/28/12 

sub-total 
CarlosIShaff Loan 2006 
Missick Road Loan 2006 
Route 51 Loan 2W6 
PSC Rate case 2007 

Sub -total 
Totaldebt 

Less: Currentmaturities oflong - termdebt 
Total Water Dlstricb long -termdebt 
Sanitary Dlsticb Debt 

Maryland Wafer Qualily Loans 
Bowling Green 1984 
Cresaptown 1984 
Cresaptown 1986 
Bedford Road 1983 
Georges Creek 1982 
Bedford Road 2013 

~~~ .~~~ 
Braddack Run 2013 2019 1.0 127,230 

Sub -total 395,838 91,084 
Mwland DevmentofEnvionment 

ck~anese T reamnt  plant 1991 2010 3.705 
Celanese WWTP Upgrade 06103 2023 0.40 4,963,970 5,357,584 
lnflow and Influation Sady 1 12/03 2023 0.40 674,627 746266 

Celanese 2006 2026 0.40 534,913 573,530 
Inflow and lnfl+ration Study 11 2008 2028 1.00 916.504 970.381 
George Creek WWTP Upgrac 2009 2029 0.40 6,761,256 7,171,304 
lnflowand lnfdtation Shdy I1 2010 2030 1.00 272,842 289,895 

Sub -total 14,124,112 15,108,960 
Farmers Home Administation Loans 

Georges Creek 2 W  2047 4.125 472,055 478,309 
Cash Valley Road 19% 2036 4.50 112,564 115,363 
Oldtown Road 19% 2036 4.50 426,894 437,512 

Bowling Green/Cresaptuwn A 2 M  2047 4.125 1,781,891 1,805,493 
Bowling Green/Cresaptown B 2007 2047 4.125 349,818 354,456 
Bedford Road 2012 2052 2. WO 465,197 473,000 
Bedford Road 2013 2052 2.000 505,816 
Jennings Run 2013 2052 2.000 854,478 

Sub -total 4,968,713 3,664,133 
Oldtown 2006 2036 4.5 17,251 17,670 

Sub - total 17,251 17,670 
Tahl 19,505,914 18,881,847 

Less: Currentmaturities oflong - termdebt (1,086,079) (1,113,454) 
Total Sanitary Distich Long - termDebt $ 18,419,835 $ 17,768,393 

- -- 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 10. Long-Term Debt - continued 

Defeased Debt: 

On March 27,2013, the County issued two public improvement bonds, one taxable and one non-taxable, 
in the amount that met the definition of a current debt defeasance. 

The non-taxable public improvement bond was issued for $ 9,650,000 with an interest rate at 2.82% to 
refinance 2 FHA loans and two public improvement bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.5% to 
4.5%. A sinking fund was established in the amount of $ 1.6 million in order to complete the refunding. 

The taxable public improvement bond was issued for $ 4 600,000 with an interest rate at 1.48% to 
refinance two public improvement bond with interest rate at 5.73%. 

As a result of the current refunding, the County will decrease its total debt service requirement by 
$ 1,120,244, which results in an economic gain (the difference between the present value of the debt 
service payments on the old and the new debt) of $ 1,168,506, or 7% of the principal amount being 
refunded. 

As part of the refunding, a sinking fund investment was established in order to pay certain future debt 
payments. The County will continue to make originally scheduled debt payments for the short term and 
then the sinking fund investment will pay off the rest of the debt. This process does not qualify as an in- 
substance defeasance. Therefore, the debt has remained on the financial statements at its principal 
balance as of June 30,2013 in the amount of $2,470,000. 

A premium on the bond issuance resulted from the refunding in the amount of $486,468. This amount is 
reflected on the Statement of Net Position. Premium will be amortized over the life of the refunded 
bonds. 
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Note 10. Long-Term Debt - continued 

The following is a summary of debt transactions for the discretely presented component units for the 
fiscal year ended June 30,2013. 

Long-term Liabilities -Component Units 

Long-termdebt activity for the year ended June 30,2013: 

Allegany LaVale 
College of Sanitary 
Maryland Commission 

Payable at July 1,2012 $ 224,548 $ 3,679,678 
Amount issued 
Amount retired (49,465) (131,759) 
Payable at June 30,2013 $ 175,083 $ 3,547,919 

Annualdebt service requirements to maturrty: 

Allegany College of Maryland (Capiial Leases) LaVale Sanitary Commission 
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 

2014 $ 43,465 $ 10,496 $ 53,961 $ 89,692 $ 140,536 $ 230,228 
2015 43,461 7,674 51,135 116.5% 137,502 254,098 
2016 41,727 4,745 46,472 120,732 133,366 254,098 
2017 42,736 1,851 44,587 125,MZ 129,056 254,098 
2018 3,694 21 3,715 129,539 124,562 254,101 

2019-2023 722,062 548,447 1,270,509 
2024-2028 746,423 404,717 1,151,140 
2029-2033 922,261 228,879 1,151,140 
2034-2038 575,572 42,224 617,796 

$ 175,083 $ 24,787 $ 199,870 $ 3,547,919 $ 1,889,289 $ 5,437,208 

Note 1 1. Pension and Retirement Systems 

Allegany County Primary Government 

Plan Descriptions 

Allegany County contributes to the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems ("Systems"). 
Both systems are cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans. The Systems were 
established by Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland to provide retirement, disability, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. 
Responsibility for the organization and administration of the Systems is vested in the Board of 
Trustees of the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems. The retirement and pension 
systems issue a publicly available financial report, which includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the following: 

Maryland State Retirement Agency 
301 W. Preston Street 
Baltimore, Maryland 21201 
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Note 11. Pension and Retirement Systems-continued 

Allegany County has also established one defined contribution plan, the Management Contractual - .  
Employees ~etiiement Plan, to provide retirement benefits to certain contractual employees of the 
County. The ICMA Retirement Corporation administers the plan. At June 30, 2013, there are 7 
members enrolled in the plans. 

Funding Policy 

Employees covered under the retirement system are required to contribute between five and seven 
percent of their base salary. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate 
and the current rate is 12.88% of covered payroll. Employees belonging to the pension system must 
contribute seven percent of their base salary and seven percent of the base salary that exceeds the 
social security wage base. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate 
also. The contribution rate for the County is currently 9.1 1% of covered payroll. The contribution 
requirements of plan members and Allegany County are established and may be amended by the 
plan's board of trustees. Allegany County's contributions for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 
and 2011, were $ 1,313,060, $1,583,172, and $1,654,551 respectively, equal to the required 
employer contributions for each year. 

The defined contribution plan requires the County to contribute 8.99% to the Management 
Contractual Employees Retirement Plan of annual covered payroll. The annual covered payroll was 
$371,914 and the required contribution was $33,700, which was made. Plan provisions and 
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the County Commissioners. 

The financial statements of the defined contribution plans are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period the contributions 
are due. Plan investments are reported at fair market value. 

Allegany County Component Units 

Board of Education-Component Unit 

The Board of Education participates in the Maryland State Retirement System part of the same 
cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension and retirement systems the County 
participates in. The employees are covered under either the Teachers' Retirement System, the 
Employees' Retirement System, the Teachers' Pension System or the Employees' Pension 
System Plans. A copy of the report can be obtained by writing to the Maryland State Retirement 
Agency at the address listed above. 

Members of the retirement systems entering on or after July 1, 1973 are required to contribute 
5% or 7%, based on personal election, of earnable compensation; members before that date 
contribute the lesser of 5% or the percentage they were contributing prior to July 1, 1973. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2013 

Note 11. Pension and Retirement Svstems-continued 

Members of the contributory pensions are required to make contributions of 7% of earnable 
compensation. The Board of Education is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate 
for individuals in the employee retirement system and the employee contributory pension 
system. The current rate is 8.99%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the 
Board are established and may be amended by the State Retirement and Pension System Board 
of Trustees. The Board contributions for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were 
$2,886,886, and $1,695,690, and $1,428,305, respectively, equal to the required contributions for 
each year. 

Allegany County Library System-Component Unit 

The employees of the Library are provided retirement benefits through the Maryland State 
Retirement and Pension Systems; the same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
retirement system in which the County participates. All employees of the Library System except 
custodial personnel are covered by the Maryland State Teacher's Retirement Systems. The 
Maryland State Department of Education is directly responsible for all financial and 
administrative requirements of the employees' participation in the Teachers Retirement System. 
The Library System itself is only financially and administratively responsible for custodial 
employees' participation in the Maryland State Retirement Systems. As of year-end, all custodial 
employees participated in the pension system. Detailed information on the Library's retirement 
plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends may be obtained in their 
financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2013. The Library's contributions for the years 
ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $11,656, $9,996 and $7,692, respectively, equal to 
the required employer contributions for custodial staff for each year. All payments have been 
made by the State of Maryland for the non-custodial employees for the years ended June 30, 
2013,2012 and 2011 in the amounts of $119,239, $120,883, and $128,282 respectively. 

Allegany County Component Units 

Allegany College-Component Unit 

The College's permanent employees are provided pension benefits through one of several 
pension plans: Maryland State Teachers' Retirement System, Maryland State Teachers' Pension 
System, TIAAICREF Retirement Plan, Maryland State Employees' Retirement System, and the 
Maryland State Employees' Pension System. All of the plans the College participates in are the 
same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans the County participates in, with the 
exception of TIANCREF Retirement Plan which is a separate plan the County is not associated 
with. The State of Maryland is responsible for funding the employee portion of pension costs for 
substantially all employees covered by the Teachers' Retirement System, Teachers' Pension 
System, and the TIANCREF Retirement Plan. The State of Maryland's total contributions to 
these plans for fiscal year 2013 were $1,528,695. 
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Note 11. Pension and Retirement Systems - continued 

Detailed information on the College's retirement plan provisions, funding status, required 
contributions and trends may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30, 
2013. Allegany College's contributions for the years ended June 30,2013, 2012 and 201 1 were 
$85,704, $1 18,414 and $1 16,081, respectively, equal to the required employer contributions for 
each year. 

LaVale Sanitary Commission - Component Unit 

The Sanitary Commission provides a defined benefit pension plan for all their full-time 
employees. The plan is a single employer non-contributory plan and is not a part of any of the 
plans in which the County participates. Detailed information on LaVale Sanitary 
Commission's retirement plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends 
may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2013. LaVale 
Sanitary's contributions for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $ 26,299, 
$60,353, and $ 50,927, respectively, equal to or greater than the required employer 
contributions for each year. Contributions exceeding the required annual contributions are 
recorded as an asset in the Commission's financial statements; the balance at June 30, 2013 
was $580,859. 

Note 12. Length of Service Award Program 

A. Plan Description 

On January 1, 2009, the County adopted the Allegany County Emergency Services Length of 
Service Awards Program for the Allegany County Emergency Service Organizations members 
which provide fire, rescue, and ambulance services to the residents of Allegany County. The plan 
is a single employer, defined benefit pension plan which is open to any volunteer over the age of 
eighteen, who has completed one year of service. Participants vest after ten years of service and 
earn a fixed dollar benefit based on years of service. No separate financial report is issued for the 
plan. 

At year end, the program membership consisted of 654 eligible members and no retirees. 
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Note 12. L e n d  of Service Award Program-continued 

B. Funding Policy 

The plan is available to vested volunteer members with no covered payroll. Benefits amortize on 
a level dollar basis, and are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plan. Benefits accrue per month at the rate of $7 multiplied by years of service, with a maximum 
benefit of $105 per month. Since the County fully funds the plan, refunds are not paid. The plan 
does not provide for post-retirement increases. The contribution rate is determined using an 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method. The actuarial value of the plan assets is equal to the market 
value of the assets. Present and future assets in the plan are assumed to earn an investment rate of 
return of 5.0% compounded annually. There is no inflation factor or salary increase factor used 
since there is no covered payroll. 

C. Annual Program Cost 

Fiscal Year Ending Annual Program Percentage of APC Net Program 
cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 

June 30,2009 $200,000 100% 0 
June 30,2010 $200,000 100% 0 
June 30,2011 $199,000 100% 0 
June 30,2012 $210,240 100% 0 
June 30,2013 $235,805 100% 0 

The program's funding provides for periodic County contributions at actuarially determined rates that 
are sufficient to accumulate adequate assets to pay benefits when due. At year end the plan had net 
assets available for benefits totaling $861,114. 

D. Funding Status and Funding Progress 

As of January 1,2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was funded 119%. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $520,526 resulting in an UAAL of ($96,969). 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required in supplementary information following 
the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents multi-year information about whether the 
actuarial value of the plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
liabilities for benefits. 
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Sote 13. <;ovemmental Fund Balance (:lassifications 

Beginning with fiscal year 2012, the County adopted GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions", which redefined how fund balances of governmental funds 
are presented in the financial statements. Those classifications are: 

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a nonspendable form 
or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Allegany 
County Code, federal or state laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 
Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal 
resolution or ordinance by the Board of County Commissioners. 
Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Board of Commissioners or the Director of 
Finance for a particular purpose. 
Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

Fiscal Year 2013 Fund Balance Classifications 

Major Special 
Revenue Fund 

General Revoking Other 
Fund Balances: Fund Buildmg Funds Total 

Nonspendable 
Long term receivables $ 1,200,000 $ - $ - $ 1,200,000 
Prepaids 1,255 1,255 

Restricted for: 
Transit bus replacement 148,863 148,863 
Housing programs 263,722 263,722 
Coal Haul Roads 753,201 753,201 
Drug task Force 21,596 21,596 
Inmate activities 292,996 292,996 
Fire Companies 240,966 240,966 
Debt retirement 1,432270 1,432,270 
Stream restoration,other 46,121 46,121 

Committed to: 
Economic development 8,869,191 8,869,191 
Fire Companies 
School capital 32,511 32,511 

Assigned to: 
Election machine replacements 150,000 150,000 
Nursing Home retiree 

health insurance 297,970 297,970 
Debt retirement 
Technology enhancements 376,327 376,327 
Highway projects 1,028,640 1,028,640 
Public safety projects 200,000 200,000 
Library roof repairs 93,674 93,674 
County building improvements 743,644 743,644 

Unassigned: 17,901,696 (1 1,060) 17,890,636 
$ 19,699,784 $ 8,869,191 $ 5,514,608 16 34,083,583 
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Note 14. Postemulovment Healthcare Plan 

Plan Description. The County's defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan, the Allegany County 
Non-Pension Post Employment Benefits Plan (ACBP), provides medical benefits to eligible retired 
County employees and their beneficiaries. ACBP is affiliated with the Allegany County, Maryland 
Non-Pension Post Employment Benefit Trust (ACMBT), an agent multiple-employer postemployment 
healthcare plan. The Allegany County Code assigns the authority to establish and amend the benefit 
provisions of the plans that participate in ACMBT to the respective employer entities, for ACBP, that 
authority rests with Allegany County. ACMBT issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for ACMBT . That report may be obtained 
by writing to Allegany County, Maryland Non-Pension Post Employment Benefit Trust, Allegany 
County Finance Office, 701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland 21502. 

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and 
may be amended by ACMBT board of trustees. ACBP members under age 65 receiving benefits who 
were hired prior to July 1, 1997 contribute 8% of the premium and members under the age 65 receiving 
benefits who were hired after June 30, 1997 contribute 50% of the premium. Plan members over the age 
of 65 with the standard supplemental coverage make no contributions; plan members over age 65 may 
elect enhanced coverage for which they pay any additional premium over the cost of the standard 
supplemental coverage. 

The current ARC rate is 13.94 percent of annual covered payroll. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual Other Post Employment Benefit 
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), 
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents 
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal costs each year to 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
The following table show the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the county's net OPEB obligation to the retiree health 
plan: 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 1,960,982 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (46,858) 
Adjustment to ARC 40,223 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,954,347 
Contribution Towards OPEB Cost (1,954,419) 
Increase (Decrease) inNet OPEB Obligation (asset) (72) 
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset)-Beginning of the year (669,401) 
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset)-End of the year $ (669,473) 
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Sotc 14. Postemployment Hcalthcare Plan-continued 

For fiscal year 2013, the County's annual OPEB cost (expense) of $1,954,347 for ACBP was less than 
the ARC. The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, 
and the net OPEB obligation for 2013 and the preceding fiscal year are as follows: 

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net 
Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB 

Ended Costs Cost Contributed Obligation 
06130113 1,954,347 100.0% $ (669,473) 
06130112 1,968,268 100.4% $ (669,401) 
0613011 1 1,973,780 102.8% $ (661,843) 
06130110 2,050,000 100.0% 
06130109 2,245,000 100.0% 

Funding Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2012 (the date of 
the latest actuarial valuation) was a~follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 24,377,567 
Actuarial value of plan assets 2,304,271 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 22,073,296 

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assetslAAL) 9.45% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 14,024,592 
UAAL as apercentage of coveredpayroll 157.40% 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether 
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are 
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that. point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used to include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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Note 14. Postcmployment Hcalthcare Plan-continued 

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the proiected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The - .  A " 

inflation rate was assumed to be constant at 3% per year. The actuarial assumptions included a 7.0 percent 
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8 
percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent after 3 years. The actuarial 
value of ACBP assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in 
the market value of investments over a three year period. The ACBP's unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining 
amortization period at July 1,2012, was twenty-six years. 

The County has elected to apply GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively and as a result the liability at 
transition was $0. 

Note 15. Risk Management 

Liability Insurance - The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which it carries commercial 
insurance. The County retains no risk for claims up to the maximum amount of the policy except for 
deductible amounts. During the fiscal year and for the three prior fiscal years, the County did not have 
any losses exceeding its insurance coverage. 

Self-lnsured Health Care - Effective January 1,2009, the County is self-insured for hospitalization and 
medical benefits provided to its employees within specified limits. The County pays a third party 
administrator a monthly fixed fee for various claim administrative sewices on a per enrolled employee 
basis to administer the plan. The County has established a Health Insurance Trust Fund, an employee 
benefit trust fund, used to account for the activity and assets held in trust for the health insurance 
benefits of its employees. 

The third-party administrator submits invoices periodically for all processed claims and administrative 
fees, and the County issues payment to the third-party administrator, who in turn issues individual 
claims checks. To protect itself against significant losses, the County has stop-loss policies in place for 
individual participant health care claims in excess of $200,000 per year and aggregate annual participant 
claims in excess of $6,338,301. 

Third party administrators estimated the non-discounted claims liability reported in the funds at June 30, 
2013. It is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, 
which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurred 
but not reported claims, be reported. Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors 
as inflation, change in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing claims 
liabilities does not necessary result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are reevaluated periodically to 
take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social 
factors. 
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Note 15. Risk Management-continued 

Changes in the balance of claims payable relating to the funds for fiscal year 2013 are as follows: 

Balance at July 1, 2012 $ 716,294 
Claims and changes in estimates (143,042) 
Claim payments - 
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 573,252 

Note 16. Pending Claims and Litigation 

The County is the defendant in several lawsuits in which plaintiffs are seeking to recover amounts from 
the County as a result of alleged damages incurred by those plaintiffs. Although the outcome of these 
lawsuits and any other potential proceeding, lawsuit or claim that is pending or threatened are not 
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the County's legal counsel and County management that 
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of the County. At 
this time, there are no known claims or judgments due within one year. 

Note 17. Contingent Liabilities 

The County participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs, principal of which 
are the U.S. Department of Agriculture, the U.S. Department of Transportation and the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Developments economic development and housing assistance grant programs. 
Entitlement to the grant proceeds is generally based on compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
grant agreements and applicable regulations, including expenditure of the resources for eligible 
purposes. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their 
representatives. The audits of these programs for and including the year ended June 30, 2013 may not 
have been concluded. 

Allegany County has borrowed funds on behalf of the LaVale Sanitary District for the purpose of 
improvements to sewer and water lines and construction of a water treatment plant and water reservoir. 
The LaVale Sanitary District is responsible for the debt service payments and County has never been 
called upon to make any of the direct payments of the conduit debt. As of June 30, 2013, such debt 
includes loans with the U.S. Department of Agriculture of $3,337,304. 

The State of Maryland's Department of the Environment and Allegany County has entered an agreement 
setting a timetable for fixing the County's combined sewer and storm water system overflow problem. 
The cost associated with correcting the problem cannot be reasonably estimated. However those costs 
will likely be spread over an extended period of years and will be borne by the users of the sewer 
systems. 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

NON-PENSION POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST (OPEB) 
Unfunded UAAL 

Achlarial Actuarial Achlarial Annual as a Percentage 

Valuation Value Accrued Funded Accrued Covered of Covered 
Date of Assets Liability Ratio Liability (UAAL) Payroll Payroll 

July 1,2008 $25,521,000 00% $25,521,000 $15,952,000 160.0% 

July 1,2010 1,850,589 25,006,403 7.4% 23,155,814 15,070,838 153.6% 

The County has elected to apply GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively and as a result the liability at transition was SO. 

LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM TRUST (LOSAP) 
Unfunded UAAL 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Amual as a Percentage 

Valuation Value Accrued Funded Accrued Covered of Covered 
Date of Assets Liability Ratio Liability (UAAL) Paymll Payroll 

January 1,201 1 400,000 $315,862 127% ($84,138) NIA NIA 

January 1,2012 617,495 520,526 119.0% (96,969) NIA NIA 

Schedule of Employer Contributions: 

Annual Actual 

Year Ended Required Contribution Percentage 

June 30 Contribution Made Contributed 

*Note: First contribution was made during FY 201 1 





AI.I.EG.4YY COL? I Y ,  MARYL.4SD 
Rl'D(;ETARY CO31PARISON SCHEDII1.E 

GEVER.41. F l 'V I )  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amount (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes: 
Real and personal property 
Payments in lieu of taxes: 

Coal companies 
Housing Authorities 
Rocky Gap 
Interest on Delinquent taxes 

Sub-total 
Less: 

Prompt payment discounts 
Deferred revenues 
Industrial exemvtions 
Cntcrprlse ulnc cxemprlons 
Rzs~dmt~al dcvclopment ta crr'd~t 
Tax increment financing 
Historic tax credit 
Real estate tax set-aside 
PILOT abatement 

Sub-total 

Total Net Property Taxes 

Income Taxes 

Other Local Taxes: 
Hotellmotel tax 
Admissions 
Recordation 
911 Fees 
Trailer coutt 
Transfer tax 
Highway users taxes 
Rocky Gap slots revenue 

Total Local Taxes 

Total Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 
Alcoholic beverage licenses 
Amusement licenses 
Traders licenses 
Occupational licenses 
Animal licenses 
Building permits 
Marriage licenses 
Cable franchise fees 
Sediment control permits 

Total Licenses and Permits 

Continued 

D-4 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted Amounts Achlal Positive 
Original Final Amount (Negative) 

REVENUES (Continued): 
Intereovernmental: 

Federal Funds: 
Homeland security grant 219,879 219,879 533,904 314,025 
Civil defense 65,000 65,000 77,665 12,665 
FEMA grant 10,000 l0,OOO 93,207 83,207 
MTA Transportation planning 87,958 87,958 85,271 (2,687) 
Railroad grant 19,848 19,848 (19,848) 
Food distribution to the needy 12,300 12,300 8,686 (3,614) 
Emergency shelter grant 38,674 38,674 
Masters program 59,890 59,890 74,244 14,354 
Payments in lieu of property taxes 7,000 7,000 7,437 437 

Sub-total Federal funds 481,875 520,549 919,088 398,539 

State Funds: 
Public Health 17,000 17,000 13,085 0,915) 
Police protection 130,000 130,000 130,595 595 
State 91 1 grant 1,500 1,500 4,096 2,596 
State transportation planning 10,995 10,995 8,780 (2,215) 
Maryland Department of Environment grant 7,843 7,843 1,400 (6,443) 
Juvenile services grant 15,130 15,130 14,875 (255) 
Department of Natural Resources 35,000 35,000 18,194 (16,806) 
Conservation aid salary 13,452 13,452 9,668 (3,784) 
Program Open Space grant 170,000 170,000 353,399 183,399 
Dispmity grant 8,930,611 8,930,611 8,930,611 
State Jury Reimbursement 44,000 44,000 47,415 3,415 
Tourism grant 33,399 33,399 
Work Crew Supervisor 30,647 30,647 33,355 2,708 
Miscellaneous 163,112 176,612 259,324 82,712 

Sub-total State Funds 9,569,290 9,582,790 9,858,196 275,406 

Other Intergovernmental: 
Other agencies 389,862 555,981 547,001 (8,980) 

Sub-total Other Intergovernmental: 389,862 555,981 547,001 (8,980) 

Total Intergovernmental 10,441,027 10,659,320 11,324,285 664,965 

Continued 



ALLEGANY COUNTY. MARYLAND 
BUI)GKI:&HY COhlP4HISOY SCHEDU1.E 

(;EVI.:K\L F I T D  
FOR THE \'FAR t'NDED JI NF. 30,2013 

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Actual Positive 
Amount (Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

REVENUES (Continued) 

Service Charecs: 
General government charges: 

State civil process 
Plans & specifications 
Regulation & Maps 
Tax sale fees 
Election filine fees 
Security interest filing fee 
License application fees 
Liquor License transfer fee 
Bay restoration collection fee 
Health Ins Admin fee 
Other general government sewice charges 
Tourism promotion charges 
Collection fees-special areas 
Liquor License Collection fee 
HoteUMotel collection fee 
Partial payment fee 
Engineering fees 
Miscellaneous general govemment 
Indirect cost allocation 

Sub-total general government charges 

Public safety charges: 
Police protection charges 
Fingerprinting fee 
Impound fees 
Jail work release 
Boarding state prisoners 
Boarding Federal prisonen 
Community service fee 
Home detention fee 
Inmate Medical Copay 
Building Inspection fees 
Ambulance fees 

Sub-total public safety charges 

Sanitation and Waste Removal: 
Landfill fees 
Recycling fees 
Recycled material sales 

Sub-total Sanitation and Waste 

Health service charges: 
Dog adoption fees 18,000 18,000 725 (17,275) 

Sub-total Health service charges 18,000 18,000 725 (17,275) 

Continued 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amount (Negative) 

REVENUES (Continued): 
Service Charges (continuedl 

Recreation Charges: 
Hotel fee, Rocky gap 34,224 34,224 

Sub-total recreation service charges 34,224 34,224 

Public semice enterprises: 
Upper Potomac River Commission 303,192 303,192 303,192 
Road closing fees 300 300 (300) 

Sub-total public service charges 303,492 303,492 303,192 (300) 
Total Service Charges 1,672,908 1,672,908 1,284,293 (388,615) 

Fines and Forfeitures: 
Circuit coult fines 7,000 7,000 4,911 (2,089) 
Contraband seizures 12,373 12,373 
Dog ordinance fmes 4,000 4,000 470 (3,530) 
Liquor violation fines 11,875 11,875 13,750 1,875 
Zoning fines 5,400 5,400 5,401 1 
Fines and forfeitures 2,500 2,500 10,237 7,737 

Total Fines and Forfeitures 30,775 30,775 47,142 16,367 

Miscellaneous: 
Interest 120,740 120,740 119,829 (911) 
Rents and concessions 289,458 289,458 308,442 18,984 
Miscellaneous 27,150 27,150 129,523 102,373 

Total Miscellaneous 437,348 437,348 557,794 120,446 

Total Revenues 81,293,474 81,593,874 82,514,624 920,750 



7 Variance with 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUNLI 
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Final Budget - 
Positive 

(Negative) 

(1 1,842) 

Budgeted Amounts 

EXPENDITURES: Original Final 
General Government: 

Aetual 

Amount 

Legislative: 
Countv Commissioners 167~184 167184 ~ ~ ~~~ ~ ~ ~~- 

County Commissioners Office 
Total legislative 167,184 167,184 

Judicial: 
Family Support Services 
Alternative dispute resolution 
Circuit court masters program 
Circuit court 
Orphans court 
Family Law Master 
State's anorney 
Victim-Witness coordinator 
Law library 
Grand and petit juries 

Total Judicial 
Executive: 

Adminismtor 
Elections: 

Registration and elections 
Financial Administration: 

Finance Office 
Tax Office 
State Assessment Fee 
Professional services 

Total Financial Administration 
Legal: 

Legal counsel 
Other IegaVprofessional 

Total legal 
Personnel Administration: 

Human Resources depamnent 502,254 505,781 
Human resources board of appeals 3,551 3,551 
WellnessEmployee recogmition 11,013 11,013 

Total personnel administration 516,818 520,345 
Plannine and Zoninr - - 

Planning and zoning department 279,906 279,906 221,933 57,973 
Land use planning 87,244 87,244 72,523 14,721 

Total Planning and Zoning 367,150 367,150 294,456 72,694 
General Services: 
County Building Maintenance 1,130,613 1,132,809 1,099,494 33,315 
Data Processing 229,314 230,733 212,177 18,556 

Total general services 1,359,927 1,363,542 1,311,671 51,871 
Other general government: 

Liquor control board 107,215 107,911 105,233 2,678 
Insurance 324,500 324,500 366,486 (41,986) 
Employee benefits 152,929 152,929 75,559 77,370 
Post retirement benefits 1,074,377 1,074,377 1,111,435 (37,058) 
Total Other General Government 1,659,021 1,659,717 1,658,713 1,004 

Total General Government 9,145,981 9,227,974 8,303,612 924,362 

Continued 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Variance wlth 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positlve 

EXPENDITURES: Original Fcnal Amount (Negative) 
EXPENDITURES (Continued): 

Public Safe*: 
Police: 

Police Depmment 1,326,246 1,346,567 1,344,538 2,029 
Sheriffs department 1,022,848 1,053,088 1,055,934 (2,846) 
C31 Unit 13,000 13,000 18,017 (5,017) 
Safe School 48,255 42,023 6,232 
Juvenile review board 47,132 47,132 45,467 1,665 
Truancy Prevention 71,196 71,196 70,230 966 
Coalition Out of School 43,664 44,072 (408) 

Total Police 2,480,422 2,622,902 2,620,281 2,621 
Fire and rescue: 

Emergency medical services 586,591 586,591 589,116 (2,525) 
Drug Seizures 33,430 (33,430) 
Length of service award 200,000 200,000 249,663 (49,663) 
Volunteer flre companies 1,031,016 1,031,016 986,710 44,306 

Total Fire 1,817,607 1,817,607 1,858,919 (41,312) 
Correction: 

C o u t  detention center maintenance 171,897 171,897 156,474 15,423 
County detention center 6,632,721 6,643,947 6,552,276 91,671 
Juvenile service grant 15,130 15,130 14,875 255 
Alternative sentencing 160,563 160,563 160,590 (27) 
Home detention grant 136,272 137,050 128,563 8,487 

Total Correction 7,116,583 7,128,587 7,012,778 115,809 
Other Protection: 

Permits & enforcement 3 19,372 320,555 308,517 12,038 
Emergency Management Ageney 228,653 230,292 208,618 21,674 
Local emergency planning 7,843 7,843 1,863 5,980 
Animal control 257,062 257,062 298,758 (41,696) 
Animal shelter 48,962 48,962 73,922 (24,960) 
911 1,941,420 1,943,349 2,112,410 (169,061) 
Harardous materials operations 69,513 69,513 64,987 4,526 
Public safety depamnent 129,573 131,074 134,827 (3,753) 
Domestic preparedness pant 219,879 219,879 708,506 (488,627) 
Building Codes 46,847 46,847 33,908 12,939 
Code Enforcement 115,853 115,853 115,653 200 
Flood control 4,000 4,000 112 3,888 
Transportation planning 121,953 122,595 94,811 27,784 

Total Other Protection 3,510,930 3,517,824 4,156,892 (639,068) 
Tatd Public S e f q  14,925,542 15,086,920 15,648,870 (561,950) 

Public Works: 
Public Services: 

Highway department 7,196,548 7.1 98,047 7,155,023 43,024 
Airport 240,000 240,000 240,000 
Waste collection: 

Solid waste disposal 445,255 395,255 375,3 16 19,939 
Solid waste recycling 164,576 164,576 161,628 2,948 

UPRC 378,990 378,990 363,528 15,462 
County engineer 957,823 962,3 13 875,744 86,569 

Total Public Works 9,383,192 9,339,181 9,171,239 167,942 

Continued 



ALLE(;,\SY COCNl'Y, 31AHYL.4UD 
BUDGETARY COMP.\RISOS SCHLUILE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

Variance with 
Final Budpet - 

Positive 
EXPENDlTURES: 
EXPENDITURES (Continued): 

Health and Hosoitals: 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

Actual 

Amount (Negative) 

Brook Building 
Willowbrook Ofiiee 
Health Deowtment su~olemental 
westem Mwiyland ~ 0 2 t h  ~l-lng 
Prescribed Medication 

Total Health and Hospitals 

Social Services: 
Nursing Home costs 
Pauper's burials 
Human Resources Devel. Comm 
Emergency shelter grant 
Child abuse coordinator 
Family Crisis Center 
Food distribution to the needy 

Total Social SeMces 

Education: 
State debt reimbursement 

Total Education 

Recreation and C u l m :  
Agriculture Expo 
Allegany County Arts Council 
Allegany County fair 
Fairgrounds maintenance 
Highland trail operations 
Cumberland Summer Theatre 
Program Open Space 

Total Recreation and Culhme 

Conservation of Natural Resources: 
Agricultural Extension Service 
Soil conservation services 
Gypsy moth con@ol 

Total Conservation of Natural Resources 

Communiw Devela~ment & Housing 

Housing Programs 
Allegany Ca. Public Housing Authority 

Total Community Development & Housing 

Economic Develooment: 
Department of Economic Development 
Scenic railroad development 
Tri-County Council 
Tourism department 
Toll House 
Thrasher Museum 
Community promotion 
Canal Place Preselvation 

Total Economic Development 

(continued) 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Pasitlve 

EXPENDITURES: Original Final Amount (Negative) 
EXPENDITURES (Continued): 

Aoorooriations to Other Governmental Units: 
Grants in Lieu of Taxes 28,704 28,704 28,704 
Health Department 1,309,469 1,309,469 1,309,469 
Depamnent of Social Services 9,800 9,800 9,800 

Total Appropriations to Other Gov't Units: 1,347,973 1,347,973 1,347,973 

Miscellaneous: 
Miscellaneous 86,750 86,750 33,553 53,197 

Total M~rcellaneous 86,750 86,750 33,553 53,197 

Payments to Comoonent Units 
Allegany Co. Board of Education 29,391,956 29,391,956 29,391,958 2 
Allegany College 7,425,000 7,425,000 7,425,000 
Allegany County Library 905,000 905,000 905,000 
Information Technology 358,754 358,754 358,754 

Total payments to component units 38,080,710 38,080,710 38,080,712 2 

Total Expenditures 77,011,150 77,255,126 76,720,515 534,615 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 4,282,324 4,338,748 5,794,109 1,455,365 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Unexoended balance - orior years ---- 
Transfers In from other funds: 

Transfers from special revenue funds 45,380 45,380 (45,380) 
Transfers from enterprise funds 27,918 27,918 28,905 987 

Total Transfers In 73,298 73,298 28,905 (44,393) 

Ooeratinx Transfers to Other Funds: 
Special revenue funds: 

Transit Fund (393,333) (393,972) (336,955) 57,017 
Housing & Section 8 fund 
Narcotics Task Force (12,000) (12,000) (5,563) 6,437 
Gaming fund 
REF (510) 510 

Debt service Fund: 
From General government (3,778,505) (3,278,505) (2,954,106) 324,399 
From Bureau of Police 

Capital Projects Fund 
Pay-Go Fund (100,000) (650,000) (650,000) 

Enterprise funds: 
Water fund (5,275) (5,744) (469) 
Sanitary fund (91,784) (91,784) (89,777) 2,007 

Total operating transfers to other funds (4,375,622) (4,432,046) (4,042,145) 389,901 

Sale of caoital assets 20,000 20,000 27,850 7,850 

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses (4,282,324) (4,338,748) (3,985,390) 353,358 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures and 
other financing uses 6 - $ 1,808,719 $ 1,808,723 

Fund balance, beginning 17,891,065 
Fund balance, ending $ 19,699,784 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
Hi'I)GF'r.\K\'CO\IP.4RISOV SCHEDI'l.FR 

HEVOLIIVG BIIII.DIS(; FI'SD SPFCIAI. R E \ , ~ : V U F  F i n n  
FOR THF \'EAR EYI) t . I ) . I i  \L3U.2013 

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amount (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 

State 6 - $ - $ 30,750 $ 30,750 
Tnfered -. .- . --. 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Economic development 6,801,886 6,802,396 416,937 6,385,459 

Total Expenditures 6,801,886 6,802,396 416,937 6,385,459 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (3,533,560) (3,534,070) 2,974,569 6,508,639 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES: 
Unexpended balance -prior years 4,930,114 4,930,114 (4,930,114) 
Transfer from other funds 510 
Transfers to other funds (1,396,554) (1,396,554) (1,851,458) (454,904) 

(510) 

Proceeds from debt issuance 
Sale of capital assets 2,490,000 2,490,000 

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 3,533,560 3,534,070 638,542 (2,895,528) 

Net change in fund balances $ - $ 3,613,111 $ 3,613,111 

Fund balance, beginning 
Fund balance, ending 

Notes t o  Required Supplementary Information 
June 30,2013 

Budgetary Basis 

Annual budgets are adouted for the General and all Soecial Revenue Funds which include the maim funds oresented in the . ~~ ~~~ ~~ 

Requ1rr.d ~ i ~ ~ l e m e n r a t )  lnformal~on All gsnernmdnral tund budgccs arc adoplrJ .,n a hay), congstcnr w~th gunrrally 
acccprcd account~ng prmc~plu\ (GAAP) Fncumbrancer and apprupr>al!uns ymcrally lapse dl \ear-end and arc treated as 
expenditures in the year the liability is incurred 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted for specific purposes. 

Coal Haul Roads Fund -this fund accounts for taxes levied on mined coal which are locally restricted for repairing 
those roads used in transporting coal. 

Transit Fund -the Transit Fund accounts for the operation of a public transit system. The primary sources of 
revenues are federal and state grants. 

CDBG Fund - this fund accounts for revenues from the federal Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
These revenues are restricted to accomplish the various objectives of CDBG programs. 

Block Grant Program Income Fund -program income from Community Development Block Grants which are 
restricted to specific programs are recorded in this fund. 

Community Development and Housing - this fund accounts for federal grants restricted for low income housing 
programs as well as various other state and federal housing programs administered by the County. 

Gaming Fund - this fund reports paper gaming revenues and their support of County f i e  companies and 
public education. 

Drug Task Force Fund -this fund accounts for federal and state grants and local seizure revenues that are used 
to prevent the distribution and manufacture of illegal drugs. 

State Fire and Rescue Fund - this fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of State Section 508 funds 
to the various County f i e  and rescue organizations. 

Debt Service Fund 

The Debt Senice Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general 
obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources. 

Capital Projects Funds 

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for capital projects primarily funded by grants and other 
external sources. 

The PAYGO (Pay-As-You-Go) Capital Project Fund is used to segregate resources for future capital 
projects and is funded by transfers from the general fund and other sources. 

The Public Improvement Bond Fund is used to account for the debt proceeds of various bond issues. 



Special Revenue Funds 
Coal Community Block tirant Cammunlti UNg 
Haul Development Program Development Task 

Roads Transit Block Grant Income &Housing Farce Gaming 
ASSETS: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Cash S S 150 S $ $ S 1,000 S 
Cash - restricted 49,366 
lnvesments 663,130 100,000 
Invesments-Resmcted 
Receivables 

Notes and loans 

prepaid; 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Accmed payroll 
Accrued payroll fringe 
Due to other funds 
Amounts held in escmw 
Unavailable Revenue 
Miscellaneous 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 753,201 7,718 256,004 21,596 
Committed 32,511 
Assigned 
Unassigned . . 

Total Fund BBmces 753,201 7.7 18 256.004 21.596 32.51 1 

T m l  Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 753,201 $ 572.544 $ 7.718 $ 632.511 $ 49,366 5 143.076 $ 372,914 



tLI.'C\I\'Y COI NTY. M.\RYLA\D 
(.O\IRIVII(; RAI.A\(:F SIIFI: C 

YOVMAJOH GOVI.K\\IE.VTAI. FI'SDS 
II Y E  30. 11113 

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Capital Project Funds 
State me, PAYtiU 'Total Total 
Rescue & Debt Capital Capital Public Capital Nonrnaior 

Public Safely Service Prqject Project Improvement Proiects Governmental 
Fund Total Fund Fund Fund Bond Fund Funds Funds 

$ $ 1,150 $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,150 
49,366 49,366 

245,497 1,008,627 1,728,927 321,841 2,050,768 3,059,395 
1,624,180 1,624,180 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

VONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Special Revenue Funds 
Coal Communtty Block Grant Community 
Haul Development Program Development Task 

Roads Transit Block Grant Income &Housing Force Gaming 
REVENUES: Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Other local taxes % 88,777 $ $ $ $ $ $ 337,989 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 
State 
Other 

Service charges 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Highways 
Community Development 

and Housine 
Eeonomic development 
Miscellaneous 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Capital Outlay: 
General government 
Public Safety 
Public works 
Education 
Recreation & Culture 
Library 
Economic development 
Miscellaneous 
Payments to component units: 

Board of Education 336,192 
Total Expendims 1,947.508 1.703 978.559 57,159 543.530 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 90,071 (293.560) 1.348 61,718 (7.9791 (169.8411 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 336,954 
Transfers out (43,394) 
nehf issued - . . . . . . . . . 
Caoital leases 
saie of capital assets 

Tom1 Other Financing 
Sources and uses 

Net change in fund balances 90,071 1,348 61,718 (2,416) (169,8411 

Fund balance, beginning, 663.130 6 370 194 286 24 012 202.352 
Fund balance, ending $ 753,201 I - 3Tac - % s 32s11 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

VONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL F U N S  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

Special Revenue Funds Debt Setvice Capital Project Funds 
State Fire, 1 oral P A Y W  l otal 
Rescue & 

rot* 
Special Debt Capital Capita] Public Capital Nanmalor 

Public Safety Revenue Service Prolect Project Improvement Projects Governmental 
Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Bond Fund Funds Funds 

$ $ 426,766 $ $ $ $ 426,766 
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are used when debt is backed solely by fees or charges, or there is a legal requirement to 
recover costs through fees or charges or a policy decision has been made to recover costs of providing 
services through user fees. 

Allconet I1 Fund - this fund is used to account for the assets and operations of the second phase of the 
Allegany County high speed internet network which provides the infrastructure to connect the private and 
public sector to broadbandlwideband technologies. 

County Loan Fund - this fund accounts for the loan activity between the County, various agencies and 
the community. It also includes loans to the County's enterprise funds. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FLlND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Junc30,2013 

Allegany 
County 
Loan 

ASSETS Allconet I1 Fund Total 
Current Assets: 

Cash: 
Cash $ $ $ 

Receivables: 
Accounts (net) 3,344 3,344 
Other 38,284 26,007 64,291 

Due from other funds 202,253 692,411 894,664 

Miscellaneous assets 
Total current assets 243,881 718,418 962,299 

Non-current Assets: 
Advances to other funds 361,631 361,631 
Capital assets subject 

to depreciation 3,837,625 3,837,625 
Accumulated depreciation (3,670,172) (3,670,172) 

Total noncurrent assets 167,453 361,631 529,084 

Total Assets 411,334 1,080,049 1,491,383 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 26,433 26,433 
Due to other funds 
Miscellaneous liabilities 

Total current liabilities 26,433 26,433 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Long tern debt: 
Compensated absences 
Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 26,433 26,433 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 167,453 167,453 
Unrestricted 217,448 1,080,049 1,297,497 

Total Net Position $ 384,901 $ 1,080,049 $ 1,464,950 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Service charges 
Miscellaneous 

Total o~eratina Revenues 
OPE AT IN^ EXPENSES: 

Office expenses 
Utilities 
Reprurs &maintenance 
Professional services 
Materials and supplies 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 
Operating Jncome (Loss) 
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES): 

Interest income 
Other income (expense) 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 
Income (Loss) before contributions 

and transfers 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Change in net position 

Total net position -beginning 
Total net position -ending 

Allegany 
County 
Loan 

Allconet I1 Fund 
$ 281,017 S 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Allegany 
County 
Loan 

Cash flows from opera tin^ activities: Allconet I1 Fund Total 
Cash received from customers $ 280,436 $ 28,905 $ 309,341 
Cash payments for goods and services (176,349) (1 76,349) 
Other operating revenues 

Net cash provided by operating 
activities 104,087 28,905 132,992 
Cash flows from noncaoital financine activities: 

Advances from other funds 204,953 11,542 216,495 
Advances to other funds (311,031) (1 1,542) (322,573) 
Transfers from other funds 
Transfers to other funds (28,905) (28,905) 

Net cash provided by noncapital 
financing activities (106,078) (28,905) (134,983) 
Cash flows from caoital and related financine activities: 

Acquisition and constnrction 
of capital assets 

Proceeds from sale of assets 
Net cash used for capital and related 
financing activities 
Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchase of investments 
Sale of investments 
Interest on investments 1,991 1,991 

Net cash used in investing activities 1,991 1,991 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of the year 
Cash at end of year $ 5 5 

Reconciliation of o ~ e r a t i a e  income to net cash orovided by o ~ e r a t i a e  activities: 
Operating income (lass) $ (72,631) 5 $ (72,631) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 155,296 155,296 
Provision for uncoilectible accounts 
Change in assets &liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in receivables (581) 28,905 28,324 
(Increase) decrease in prepaids 
Increase (decrease) in acc'ts payable 22,003 22,003 
Increase (decrease) in accrued pay~oli 

Total adjustments 176,718 28,905 205,623 
Net cash provided by 

operating activities $ 104,087 $ 28,905 S 132,992 



SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Debt Service Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds 

& 
Capital Project Funds 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) --- 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Miscellaneous: 
Paying agent fees 

Debt Service: 
Principal payments on : 

General obligation debt 
State loans 

Total principal payments 

Interest payments on: 
General obligation debt 
State loans 

Total interest payments 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses): 
Bond Proceeds 
Transfers ftom other funds: 

From the General Fund 
From the Transit Fund 
From the Revolving Building Fund 

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 



Coal EI"~ Roads fund Tr.a.it fund 
variance With vananc. w,6 
Fmal Budpet Rnd Budact 

Onpmal Flnal Porluve Onalnal Final Politlve 
REVENUES: % B u d w  % B ~ d a e t  A,,, $menative)- Bud~et $ Bu&et Actual 

Taxes - Sfste Shared $ I 
Otherlocal faxes 110.000 110,OW 88.777 (21,2231 

- + 
Infergovrmmfal 

Fcdcral 1.011.384 1.011.384 878.535 (132.8491 
Slate 381.778 381.778 430.062 48.284 

Social scwrccr 
C o m u b  Umloomcnf 

snd HOUJvlp 
Econom~c dev~la~mmf 

DTeERfWANCMG SOURCES AND (USES\: 
Unemmdd balancc - ~"ar 
Transfa6om ofher funds 393.333 393.972 336.954 f57.0181 
Transfer$ to ofher hvlds (42.41 11 142.41 11 143.3941 I9831 
Debt lrrucd 
Sale of cap>fal aJaet9 -- 

Total Ofher Flnanclna 
Sovrcer andUser -- 350,922 351.561 293.560 (58,001L 

- S Net chang vl fund balancer S 90,071 S 1139.929) I - S - S 

Fund halane* be&!jmmp 
Fund balanc.. ="dm* 



ALLEGANY C O W ,  MARYLAND 
SPECIAL REVENUEFUNDS 

SCBEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CEANGES M FUND BAJANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

PORTBE YEARENDED JUNE 30,10l3 

Connvnih Dwdo~ment Block Grant Fund Block Gran1Propr.n tacome Fund 
vananee Wlth variance With ~~~~~~~~ ~- 

Fmal Budaet Fhal Budaa 
a i * a  Final Poritive ongi"a1 Final Porltive 

REVENUES: Budzef 
$ . + *  t i  $ Budget $ Budnet A"" 

Taxes - State Shared S 
ofher local taxes 

.+ 
Infer~0"emmmtal 

Federal 1.348 1.348 3,753 3.753 
Q,.tr 

h h e r  
Service chsrxes 
F m e ~  and fmfelfurea 
herest 
Mis~dlaneou~ ------ 59.668 59.668 

Total Revenues -- 1.348 1.348 - - 63.421 63.421 

EXPENDITURES: 
General Eovemment 
Pubilc saiefy 
Public works 
Health& h o s ~ i a s  
nlphway 
Social Services 
C o m w i t v  Drvclomnent 

Excess (defic~encyl ofrevenues 
ovcr(under) ex~endifurflyfly - . 

OTaERFINANCMG SOURCES AND (USES$ 
Unemended balance - mii i  
Tmfer f rom other fund3 
Tiansferr io ofher fund3 
Debt i ~ ~ u e d  
Sale of capital asset. -- 

T O ~  other Plnan~lnp 
Sources anduser -- 
N d  change i"fund balmces P - 6 - -- 

Fund balm"~. be.mni"& 
Fund balance, cndrng 



ALLECANY COUNTY. MARYLAND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDTTURES. AND CHANGES M FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FORTHE YEARENDEDJUNE 30,1013 

hlsvld Flnal Po~ltlve Onplna1 Find 
REVENUES: Budpet 

$ -?% lb 
patwe! $ Budget $ B u d  Actual 

Taxea - Statc Shared 
Other local taxer 
Intei~ovemmmtai 

Federal 938.559 938.559 
State 40.000 40.000 
Other 

S m l c e  charges 
F h a  and forfeiMn 50.300 
htrrert 
M!rceIlaneous 

Total Revenuer 978.559 978.559 50.300 

-, 

Socld scnrisc. 
CmmnU,iW Dcvelqrmcnf 

and Hovvlp 978.559 (978.559) 
Economic develo~rnrnt 
Minccilanearu 
Pamane  to Com~onenf us 

Total Expendlfurc3 978.559 (978.5591 62.300 

O T m R F I N A N C N C  SOURCES AYDIUSESI: 
I . .~md. I~almrr  -m>m 
1 rmirrr !,or o*er f ~ ? &  
Tranlfera to a*er fund3 
Debt issued 
Sale oicaoital arrats 

Total Other Fhanemp 
Sorocas and Uses 12.000 

Net changc ln fund balances S - S - S - '6 = 

Fund bdanc4 brljlnnhe 
Fund balance, rnding 



ALLEGANY COUNI'Y, MARYUM) 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUM)S 

SCBEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDlTURES,AND CEANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 
RIIDCFTAND d r n l d l  . -- .-- 

FORTEE VEARENDED JUNE 30,1013 

Gamin. Fund 
variance Wlth 
Final Budact 

O n a  Final Pa~lfivc 
REVENUES: Budeef 

S . -p% Achlal 
Taxer - State Shared S 
Other local taxes 384,000 384.000 337,989 (46,011) 

- * 
Intw~ovemcnfal 

Federal 
state 
other 

S w i c e  o h ~ ~ 9 e s  35,000 35.000 35.700 700 
Fines andforfe,furc. 
Interest 
Miscellmeovt 

Total Revrnues 419,000 T 373.689 (45.3111 

EXPENDITURES: 
General xovement 143.285 143.285 132.790 10.495 
Public s&hi 68,929 68.929 74.548 (5,619) 
Pubhcworks 
Health & horoifslr 

Excess (dcflciencvl ofrcvenuer 
0"" (under1 expendityetye- 

OTHERFINANCING SOURCES AND NSESI: 
U~exomdcd balance -mior. 

Debt issued 
sale of cmrtal assets - 

Tow ma Einancma 
Sources anduse* 

Nctchaqc inhdbalanees S 16 

Fund balance, hen-d. 
Fund ba lms ,  cndlng 

Reuolvioz Buildins Fuod 
vanancc With 
Final Budaet 

0"inal F d  Pa$i"ve 

S 
Actual 

. *  



ALLECANY COUNTY. MARYLAND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IP FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Fir* Rescue & Public Sale* Fund Total S ~ ~ c i s l  Reraaue Fuadr 
var,ance Wifh vanance Wifh 
Fmal Budqet Fmd Budiicf 

or~plnal ~ m a l  ~ositive ongmal ~ l n a l  ~ o ~ i n v e  
REVENUES: Budget 

6 - + I  
A~rual ;Ne~at~veI- I B e  Budget Acmal (Nenatlucl 

Taxer - State Shared - $ 3  
Other local faxes 494.000 494.000 426.766 (67.2341 
L"t.r.ovemmenfal 

Federal 1.011.384 1.011.384 1.822.195 810.81 1 
Slate 219.596 219.596 237.988 18.392 601.374 601.374 738.800 137,426 
other 

Service charter 95.000 95.000 92.996 12.0041 496.250 496.250 473.942 (22.3081 
Finer and farf.iturer 50.300 50.300 48.977 0.3231 
Merest 900 900 349 (5511 5.900 5.900 1.846 (4.0541 
M~rcellanroun 53.000 53.000 43.731 (9.269L 1,321,326 3.321.326 3.464.260 142.934 

Total Revmuer 368.496 368.496 375.064 6.568 5.980.534 5.980.534 6.976.786 996.252 

EXPENDIWRES: 
General icoucmmsnf 143.285 143.285 132.790 (10.4951 
Publlc safcCi 596.092 596.092 364.395 231.697 727.321 727,321 496.102 (231.2191 
Pubhe works 2.225.334 2,225.973 1.947.508 (278.4651 
Health & hor~~ta l s  
Hiph~ay 
sncial Servlcel ~~~~ 

C ~ u r u f y  Dwelo~mcnf 
and Hounnp. 

Economic drveloomcnt 

Excess (defis~mcvl ofrevenuer 
aver (undcrl ex~mdibues 1227.596) (227.5961 10669 238.265 (4.124.078L (4.125.2271 2,666.995 

OTAER FWANCMGSOURCFSAND (USESk 
Unemended balance - prior. 227.596 227.596 - (227.5961 5.157.710 5.157.710 (5.157.7101 
Tranrfer irom otha  fun& 405.333 1106.482 342.517 (63.9651 
Traniferr to ofha fun& (1.438.9651 11.438.9651 (1,894,852) (455.8871 
Debt lrrvcd 
Sale of ca~ital sJxcU 2,490.000 2 490 000 

~ ~ t a l  omer ~ l n ~ ~ l n ~  
Savcrs andUses 227,596 227.596 (227.596L 4.124.078 4.125.227 937.665 3 187562 

Net change ln fund balmces 6 - I 10,669 1 10,669 I 6 - $ 3,604,660 

i Fund balance. bel(@i"*, 
Fwd balance, mdmg 



REVENUES: 
lntergovemmcntal 

Federal grants 
State grants 
Other 

Service charges 
Miscellaneaus: 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES W FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Capital Improvement Projects Fund 
Variance With 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Achlal (Negative) 

S 
312,583 312,583 

86,300 86,300 (86,300) 

EXPENDITrnS:  
General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 332,400 332,400 
Health 
Social Senices 
Education 96,000 96,000 
Recreation, Culhire &Libraries 
Conservation of Natural Resour< 
Economic Development 
Miscellaneous 
Payments to component units 

Total Expendihlres 428.400 428,400 

Pay-As-You-Go (PAYGO) Fund 
Variance With 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Nepative) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (342.100) (342.100) (66,067) 276.033 (275.000) (275.000) (71 1.165) (436,1651 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES: 
Unexpended fund balance 342,100 342,100 (342,100) 175,000 175,000 (1 75,000) 
Transfers In: 

From other funds 23,218 23,218 100,000 650,000 661,213 11,213 
Transfers Out: 

To other funds (11,213) (11,213) (23,218) (23,218) 
Debt issued 
Capital leases 
Sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Uses 342,100 342.100 12.005 (330.095) 275,000 825.000 637,995 (1 87.005) 

I Net change in fund balances S - 5 (54,062) $ (54,062) $ - $ 550,000 (73,170) $ (623,1701 

Fund balance, beginning 
Fund balance, ending 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPlTAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.2013 

Public improvement Bonds 
Capital Projects Fund 

Variance With 
Find Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget B u d ~ e t  Aohlal (Nc~etive) 

Total All Capital ProjecU 
Variance With 
Find Budget 

Onginal Final Positi~e 
Budget Budget Aetual (Negative) 



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND PROJECT 

BALANCES 
FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30,2013 





ALLUiANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF REWNUES, EX'ENDlTURES, AND PROJECT BALANCES 

FROM hlCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Projen Revenues and other Sources 

Proj. Length Federal State Other Service Miscellaneous. 

Capital Improvement Pro'ects Fund No. Budget Grants Grants Intergov'l Charges Revenues 
-N 
Cmh Valley Road 4084 
AC Auto Tech Building 4086 
Flood buyouts 4087 
Detention Center HVAC 408A 
Orleans Road Bridge 408B 
Allegany High School 408H 
Patomac Hollow Road Bridge 408P 
Takoma Drainage 408T 
Tree Plantine Grant 408U 
Emergency Watershed 408V 50,000 

Flood Gate Savaee Dam 409s 3 715,000 3,265,061 401,372 346,401 

Flood Mitigation, PDM Scattered 409X 21 1,247 158,247 
Tn$- 

Pay-As-You-Go Capital Project Fun 

Fa - -- .. . - 
Roads Psvtna f%sam 418R 4 581.608 
LaValc Blvd S m  Uraln 42(Q !,Mo,oOn 110 435 132,813 
Soha re  upgrade 420s 805,309 230,856 
D ~ ~ a ~ t e r  Emergency Capltal 420V 200,000 
Animal Shelter Ouarantlne Add" 420X 271,084 64,460 

Caretaker House 420Y 50,000 ,.-. 5,iB . . . . .. . OP %'&- 
Bridge St& bndge 4207 416,WO 
~ m i ~ ~ ~ g e  m p m n  4208 25.000 
Fiber infrastructure 421A 200,000 
Libray Repairs 421F 100,000 
Sheriff Building 421H 800,000 
County bldg improvements 4181 106,681 18,981 116,381 

249,837 110,435 16,392 313,654 

Public improvement Bonds Capital Project Fund 

BOE Czmal Mfrzc Rmf 432D 273.000 
Bund Inwest 4322 15.444 21.418 
Libraty - LaVale parking lot 4322 34,000 
Braddock Run Restoration 4323 800,000 82,500 500,000 500 
Jennings Run Restoration 4324 800,000 500,000 -. .~ ..AcOeotIterma, Rojfft h .. . '.'...<3*j.. - .  - 327,W0 ., . . ~ . ~ .  ? 

2013 PIB Closmg Costs 4331 
2013 Taxable Bod Cb81ngCOFdS 4333 
X I ?  PLB Boad hterlest 433Y 

I Courthouse r w f  

Total Capital Project Funds $ 8,517,157 $ 7,675,274 5 6,772 $ 362,793 5 621,191 



ALLEOANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDllURES, AND PROJECT BALANCES 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Revenues and other Sources Expenditures and other Uses Remaining 

Debt Transfers Total Transfers Total Project Prqleet 
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES 
BY PROJECT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, ,MARYLAND 
ChPIT,ZL PROJECTS FUND 

CAPITAL IMPROVEI\lENT PROJECT F I N D  

SCHEDIiLE OF REVENIiES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI'ND BALANCES 
BY PROJECT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

REVENUES: 
Intereovemmental: 

Federal: 
Department of Energy 
EPA 

State: 
Dept of Natural Resources 
Dept of Environment 

Service charges 
Miscellaneous: 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Potomac 
Detention Orleans Rd Hollow Takoma 

Center HVAC Bridge Rd Bridge Drainage 
(408A) (4088) (408P) (408T) 

EXPENDITLRES: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Education 
Economic Development 

Total Expenditures - 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES): 
Transfers-in from: 

General Fund 
Pay-Go Fund 

Transfer Out 
Total Other Financing 

Sources and Uses 

Net change in fund balances 

New Hope Allegany AC Auto 
Road High School Tech Bldg 

(4083) (408H) (4086) 

Fund Balance, beginning (2,227) (245,034) 139,425 (103) (23,219) 60,803 
Fund Balance, Ending $ (2,227) $ (247,476) $111,378 % (21,553) $ (1) $ (1,941) S 60,803 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPIT:\L PROJE(.'I'S FllUU 

CAPITAL. I\IPROVKhlESr PROJECT F l S U  
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BY PROJECT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

UPRC Potornac River Flood 
Flood Emergency Flood Water Tree Planting Mitigation Highland 

Buyout Watershed Gate Study Grant Dly Run PDM Sites Trail Fund 
(4087) (408V) (409s) (409T) (408U) (409L) (409X) (410X) Total 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

P \ \  -4s -YOI- ( ;O (P,4Y(;O) CAPIT.41. PRO.IE(:T F I V D  
SCI1EDl'I.F. OF RE\'LI;IES. F.XPESDITI.'RES.\SD C H A N G E S  IS FCSD RAI.4SCES- B\ PHOJE(:'T 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal g r i t s :  
RDA grant 
Homeland Security 

State grants: 
Maryland highway grant 
Maryland envimomental grant 
Miscellaneous state grants 

Other Agency 
Miscellaneous: 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
General Government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation & culture 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenditures 

Roads LaVale 
Computer Paving Stom 
Network Program Drains 

(4181) (418R) (4200) 

Fen Ledger Public Safety 
Software Emergency Caretaker 
Upgrades Capital House 

(420s) (420V) (42OY) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES): 
Transfers-in from: 

General fund 11,213 50,000 
General Fund, internal transfers 

Transfers -out to: 
Capital Projects Fund (23,218) 

Debt proceeds, capital lease 
Total Other Financina - 

Sources and Uses (23,218) 11,213 50,000 

Net change in fund balances (550,434) 11,213 (42,615) 50,000 

Fund Balance, beginning 
Fund Balance, Ending 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

PAY-AS-YOU-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Total 
County PAYGO 

Road Bridge Street Drainage Fiber Building Capital 
Improvements Bridge Improvements Infrastructure Library Sheriff Bldg Improvements Projects 

(4203) (4207) (4208) (421A) (42 1 F) (421H) (4181) Fund 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental 

state grants: 
MD E m q r n c y  M p f  
MD Dept ofEnvironment 

Misccllaneou: 
1"tere.f 
Mircsllan~ous 

Total Revenuer 

EXPENDITIIRES: 
General govemmsn, 
Education 
Mircsllaneour 

Total E m e n d i m s  

SOURCES and (IISES): 
Bond Pro~ssdr  

Total Other Finansing 
Sources and Uses 

Fund Balance. begjnning 
Fund Balance. Ending 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAM) 
CAPITALPROJECTS PUND 

PLBLI(: I*IPKO\'LWLVI ROYDFUYD 
S('IIFDI LC O F  RCVENUCS. EXPEYDITI RE\ ASD ('HAS(;t.\ I Y  R.'YD B\L&.VCES - BY PUOJLCT 

FORTIIF YFAR FNDFD.n NF. 10.2013 

2008 Public Impmvemmt Bond 
Compvtn Braddock Jmnings C o w  Total 2008 

Aided Bond Run Run BOE Ceowl House Public 
Dirpatshcr lnfcrc~t Rcsforation Rcstmtion OfficeRoof Rmf lmpmvemmt 

(4326) (4322) (4323) (4324) (432D) (4329) Bond 

2013 PLB Totals 

Bond Closing Taxable Band Band PIB 
Costs CloringCorts Interest Fund 

(4331) (4333) (433Y) 



ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
COMBINING SCHEDULES 

WATER DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN 

NET POSITION 

SANITARY DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE 

OF NET POSITION 

SANITARY DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN 

NET POSITION 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
ILLEGANY COUNTY WATER DISTRICTS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

General Barton Ind. Mexico Franklin! Bowling Bowman's - 
Operating Grahamtom Consol Park Farms Brophytown Green Addition Cresaptom 

OPERATING REVENUES: 5011 501A 5018 501C 501D 501E 501F 501G 501H 
Sewice charges $ 22,537 $ 136,730 $ 35,108 $ 12,531 $ 849,950 $ 50,044 $ 409,258 $ 146,479 $ 619,511 
Miscellaneous 

22,537 136,730 Total Operating Revenues - 35,108 12,531 849,950 50,044 409,258 146,479 619,511 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salmies 
F ~ e e  benefits " 

Office expenses 
Utilities 
Repaim and maintenance 27,762 602 1,904 26,722 8,251 50,785 826 12,489 
Contractual 
Professional fees 286 
Materials and supplies 1,601 424 1,072 650 9,391 1,775 5,145 
Insurance 
lnhect  cost 4,974 1,649 2,557 27,343 1,050 14,918 6,186 19,330 
Miscellaneous 28 7 18 I 87 26 83 
Depreciation 39,486 18,186 44,422 53,001 38,927 72,632 42,885 

- 152,678 Total Operating Expenses - 44,727 62,697 777,069 33,099 454,606 177,787 674,112 

22,537 (15,948) (9,619) (50,166) 72,881 Operating Income (Loss) - 16,945 (45,348) (31,308) (54,601) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES): 
Interest income 116 6,021 1,539 4,156 247 20,390 6,841 19,664 
Interest expense (6,726) (23,525) (4,248) (14,733) (17,290) - (35,799) (39,128) 

Total Non-operating 
Revenue (Expenses) (6,610) (17,504) (2,709) (14,733) (13,134) 247 20,390 (28,958) (19,464) 

Income Before Contcibutions 
and Transfers 15,927 (33,452) (12,328) (64,899) 59,747 17,192 (24,958) (60,266) (74,065) 
Capital Contributions: 

Federal grants - 248,798 48,354 
State grants 
Other governments 

Transfen in: 
General fund 5,744 
Revolving Building Fund 19,348 

Change inNet Position $ 15,927 $ (33,452) $ (12,328) $ (39,807) S 59,747 $ 17,192 $ (24,958) 188,533 $ (25,711) 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

Mt. Bedford Rawlings Oldtown 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Bordenl 
Route 36 Zhilmani CarloslShaftl 

Savage Road water Road McCoole Ellerslie Eckhart Hoffman Vale S d t  Morantown Klondike 
501J 50lK SOIL 5012 5013 5014 5015 - 5016 5017 5018 5019 Total 

$ 637 $ 26,124 $ 186,821 $ 170,537 S 353,201 $ 281,789 $ 7,900 $ 65,670 $ 118,538 $ 193,049 $ 3,686,415 

Total net position - beginning 
Total net position - ending 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS 
CO\lBlhl\C; SCtlt.UI'I.b OFVET POSITIOX 

PROI'RIE TAR\' FUND TYPE - IE\TERPRISF FL1\DS) 

Jennings 
General Bowling Braddock Bedford RuniWills 

Fund Green Cresaptown Run Road Creek McCoole 
ASSETS 511 516 517 518 519 520 52 1 
Current Assets: 

Cash: 
Cash $ 770,226 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
Cash - Restricted 101,919 

lnve~rments 203,666 64,046 
Receivables: 

Accounts (net) 10,696 144,696 83,316 223,250 129,214 114,265 19,799 
Taxes - reshicted 30,059 25,228 3,798 23,831 9,313 1,316 
Accounts (net) - resuicted 89,311 1,816 
Other 929,472 

Due from other funds 74,501 881,798 534,459 
Inventory 71,551 

Total current assets 2,074,922 249,256 990,342 328,967 751,550 125,394 21,115 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Land 
Consmction in progress 7,085,225 
Capital assets subject 

to depreciation 3,469,779 4,828,368 4,100,180 5,070,257 5,086,408 6,147,952 2,289,639 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,511,385) (2,439,830) (1,898,230) (2,949,623) (3,543,726) (4,360,628) (1,421,448) 

Total noncurrent assets 8,048,619 2,389,538 2,206,950 2,121,134 1,543,682 1,788,824 868,191 
Total Assets 10,123,541 2,638,794 3,197,292 2,450,101 2,295,232 1,914,218 889,306 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 1,286,744 
Accrued wages payable 40,786 
Accrued payroll fringe benefits 17,829 
Accrued interest payable 9,727 
Current portlon of long term debt 

Bonds & loans 144,055 
Other loans 
Compensated absences 71,738 

Due to other funds 5,221,499 
Accrued health claims 
Miscellaneous liabilities 215,639 76,931 

Total current liabilities 7,008,017 22,264 20,760 604,683 44,235 99,986 786,795 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Cash advance due General Fund 800,000 
Long term debt: 

Bonds & loans 1,719,918 1,097,842 1,014,791 103,793 1,192,718 854,478 
Other loans 
Compensated absences 289,385 
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,009,303 1,097,842 1,014,791 103,793 1,192,718 1,654,478 

Total Liabilities 9,017,320 1,120,106 1,035,551 708,476 1,236,953 1,754,464 786,795 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capitll assets 6,184,646 1,272,065 1,174,102 1,993,904 322,669 934,346 868,191 
Restricted for debt service 89.3 11 30,059 25,228 3,798 23,831 11,129 1,316 
Unresuicted (5,167,736) 216,564 962.41 1 (256,077) 711,779 (785,721) (766,996) 

Total Net Position $ 1,106,221 6 1,518,688 $ 2,161,741 $ 1,741,625 $ 1,058,279 $ 159,754 $ 102,511 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE -(ENTERPRISE FUNDS) 
June 30,2013 

Celanese Cash Barton 
Georges Franklid Treahnent Mexico Valley Oldtown Indush.ial Total 

Oldtown Flintstone Creek Brophytom Plant Fanns Road Road Park All 
522 523 524 525 526 527 528 529 530 Districts 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FliND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Jennings 
General Bowling Braddock Bedford Run/Wills 

Fund Green Cresaptoun Run Road Creek McCaole 
OPERATING REVENUES: 511 516 517 518 519 520 52 1 

Service charges S 11,700 S 376,420 S 340,838 S 1,166,408 6 483,820 S 368,536 $ 67,813 
Miscellaneous 

Total Omratirg Revenues 
OPERATMGEXPENSES: 

Waees and salaries " 

Employee benefits 
Offlce expenses 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Conkachlal services 
WatedSewage treatment costs 
Professional fees 
Materials and supplies 
Insumce 
Indirect cost 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES): 
Real and personal property taxes 
Interest 81 Penalties, taxes 
Discounts, taxes 
Enterpriselinduswial exemptions 
Collection fees 
Front footage assessments 
lnterest income 429 
Interest income, debt service 
Interest expense (21,336) 
Allocated debt service revenue 163,905 
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets 

Total Nonoperating revenue (expenses) 142,998 151,847 139,601 15,694 116,805 65,180 5,501 
Income Before Contributions and Transfers 137,606 6,286 (8,279) (477,157) (140,581) (360,983) (11 1,984) 

Capital Contributions: 
Federal 198,201 96,919 
State 875,000 157,475 
Other 

Transfers in: 
General Fund 
Revolving Building Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 

Change in Net Position 137,606 6,286 (8,279) 397,843 57,620 (106,589) (111,984) 

Net position - beginning 
Net position - ending 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLANn 
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS 

COIIRIVNG SCIIFDCLE O F  HL\'t:SCES, LXPESSES 
Y D  CH.\'YCk:S IS NET POSl110Y 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

Celanese Cash Baton 
Georges Franklin/ Treatment Mexico Valley Oldtam Industrial Total 

Oldtom Flintstone Creek Brophytom Plant Farms Road Road Park All 
522 523 524 525 526 527 528 529 530 Districts 

$ 17,434 $ 34,383 $ 936,633 $ 35,617 $ 1,052,676 $ 417,179 $ 24,294 $ 108,292 $ 2,434 $ 5,444,477 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
AGENCY FUND 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Balance Balance 
ASSETS: July 1,2012 Additions Deductions June 30,2013 
Taxes levied for State: 

Taxes receivable - State $ 481,642 $ 4,074,889 $ 3,931,284 $ 625,247 
Bay restoration fee 161,830 676,275 516,996 321,109 
Other receivables 2 2 
Taxes levied for Special Areas: 

Lonaconing, Town of 21,344 123,445 118,735 26,054 
Midland, Town of 5,888 37,603 36,420 7,071 
Westernport, Town of 60,364 381,435 356,651 85,148 
Cumberland differential 738 738 
Bel Air Special Tax Area 1,792 33,685 33,098 2,379 
Bowling Green Fire Co. 4,236 33,382 32,367 5,251 
Bedford Road Fire Co. 5,613 43,985 41,337 8,261 
Bowling Green Special Tax Area 3,549 26,254 25,413 4,390 
Cresaptown Ambulance 13,168 141,211 138,433 15,946 
Cresaptown Civic Imp. Assoc. 3,839 32,335 31,039 5,135 
Cresaptown Fire Co. 15,156 187,973 185,379 17,750 
Corriganville Light & Imp. 2,244 19,495 19,368 2,371 
Ellerslie Special Tax Area 1,376 9,109 8,604 1,881 
LaVale Volunteer Fire Dept. 13,733 175,880 170,343 19,270 
LaVale Rescue Squad 6,870 87,940 85,175 9,635 
LaVale Sanitary District 42,351 309,497 311,239 40,609 
McCoole Special Tax Area 736 4,328 3,767 1,297 
Moscow Light 616 3,695 3,402 909 
Mt. Savage Special Tax Area 1,892 10,641 10,082 2,451 
Potomac Park Special Tax Area 1,948 16,067 15,364 2,651 
Rawlings Fire Co. 4,570 42,273 41,252 5,591 

Sub-total special areas 212,023 1,720,233 1,667,468 264,787 
Due from other funds 194,138 6,806,510 6,506,549 494,099 

Total Assets $ 1,049,635 $ 13,277,907 $ 12,622,297 $ 1,705,247 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable $ 194,141 $ 455,656 $ 155,693 $ 494,104 
AIP Special Areas 212,021 1,720,235 1,667,469 264,787 
Taxes payable - State 161,830 676,275 516,996 625,247 
AIP Bay restoration fee 481,642 4,074,889 3,931,284 321,109 

Total Liabilities $ 1,049,634 $ 6,927,055 $ 6,271,442 $ 1,705,247 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMPARATNE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE 

June 30,2013 and 2012 

Primary Government 
At June 30,2013 Net 

Accumulated Net Book Value 
ASSETS Cost Depreciation Book Value June 30,2012 

Land $ 21,320,090 $ - $ 21,320,090 $ 21,320,090 
Construction in progress 1,689,024 1,689,024 2,204,724 
Buildings 61,079,260 21,934,437 39,144,823 42,962,592 
lnfrastmcture 48,673,041 29,985,282 18,687,759 18,512,339 
Furniture & fixtures 1,028,733 742,362 286,371 295,695 
Machinery & equipment 9,883,758 7,042,060 2,841,698 3,043,132 
Vehicles 9,692,442 7,778,059 1,914,383 1,918,209 
Heavy equipment 4,022,938 3,509,177 513,761 463,533 
Other capital assets 924,624 538,012 386,612 398,820 

Total Assets $ 158,313.910 $ 71.529.389 $ 86.784.521 $ 91.119.134 

FUND EQUITY 
Investment in general capital assets acquired 

before July 1, 1993 - source unidentified $ 8,414,008 $ 8,419,883 
Investment in construction in progress 1,689,024 2,204,724 

Investment in general capital assets by source: 
General Fund: 

General revenues 9,604,088 8,549,357 
Federal grants 3,772,896 3,285,612 
State grants 2,863,999 2,863,999 
Miscellaneous revenues 739,643 739,643 
Debt proceeds 1,106,155 1,106,155 

Special Revenue Funds: 
General revenues 45,055,478 47,229,631 
Federal grants 7,458,518 7,411,501 
State grants 8,008,234 8,008,234 
Miscellaneous revenues 194,574 194,574 
Debt proceeds 8,926,043 8,926,043 

Capital Project Funds: 
General revenues 15,697,054 15,319,488 
Federal grants 9,439,893 9,419,951 
State grants 22,009,139 21,868,272 
Miscellaneous revenues 1,082,823 1,082,823 
Debt proceeds 10,889,879 10,889,879 
Other 1,371,590 1,371,590 

Less: 
Accumulated depreciation (71,538,514) (67,772,222) 

Total Fund Equity $ 86,784,521 $ 91,119,134 



ALLEGANT COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SCHEDULE OF ASSETS BY FUNCTION 

June 30,2013 

Furniture Other Constmetion Total 
Land Function 

Less 
Buildings lnfrastrucmre & Fixhues E ui ment Vehicles Ca ital Assets In Pro ss Cost Total 

General Favemment $ 2,209,623 $ 4,949,224 $ 
Public Safety 2,045,433 18,799,969 2,647,358 330,345 7,182,527 1,675,578 175,857 199,150 33,056,217 

39,776 $ 186,623 $ !,;2,521 S 381,235 $* $ 4 g 3 3 1  $ 10,084,509 $*$ 4,157,639 

Public Works 
(11,878,666) 21,177,551 

1,449,166 1,492,971 40,149,991 305,788 845,468 6,314,772 4,021,383 1,000,543 
Health 

55,580,082 
575,119 6,553,202 4,121 7,132,442 (39,363,476) (1,332,964) 16,216,606 5,799,478 

116 Social Services 3,250 24,331 193,522 89,080 1,157,993 13,000 1,481,292 (957,474) 
Recreation & Culfure 583,119 2,620,688 214,288 8,295 6,528 39,246 430,696 3,902,860 (1,428,209) 

523,818 

Libraries 6,000 1,631,033 1,637,033 (723,541) 913,492 
2,474,651 

Natural Resources 15,839 15,999 31,838 (31,838) 
Urban Development 

&Housing 56,637 426,508 4,160 35,846 9,302 532,453 (369,355) 163,098 
h n o m i c  Development 14,394,877 24,602,415 5,597,297 95,949 98,317 86,329 44,875,184 (9,516,996) 35,358,188 
Total General 

Capital Assets 16 21.320.090 S 61.079.260 $ 48.673.041 $ 1,028,733 $ 9.883.758 $ 9,692.442 $ 4,947,562 $ 1,689,024 $ 158,313.910 S (71,529.389) $ 86.784.521 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, NLARYLAND 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

General Transfen to Accumulated Less Add General 
Capital Assets Other Asset Total Depreciation Current Year Depreciation Capital Assets 

&&im June 30.20l2 Funds Reclass Additions Deductions Cost June 30 2012 De reciation 
10,084,509 $ $* $ 

on Disposals June 30,2013 
General Gavernment $ 10,014,847 $ - S - $ 69,662 $ - $ $ 4,157,639 
Public Safety 31,433,959 1,656,210 (33,952) 33,056,217 (10,673,054) (1,238,597) 32,985 21,177,551 
Public Works 55,671,050 1,375,197 (1,466,165) 55,580,082 (38,478,330) (965,627) 80,481 16,216,606 
Health 7,132,442 7,132,442 (1,114,524) (218,440) 5,799,478 
Social Services 1,481,292 1,481,292 (787,156) (170,318) 523,818 
Recreation & Culture 3,902,860 3,902,860 (1,325,030) (103,179) 2,474,651 
Libraries 1,637,033 1,637,033 (680,366) (43,175) 913,492 
Natural Resources 31,838 31,838 (31,838) 
Urban Development & Housing 532,453 532,453 (354,292) (15,063) 163,098 
Eeonomie Develo~ment 47.053.582 2 178 398 44,875 184 54,460 

S- $- S 158,313,bm Total General Capital Assets $ 158.xY1.556 
35.358.188 

$ - $ 167,926 $ 86,7X4,52r 
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Statistical Section 

This part of the Allegany County's comprehensive annual financial reDort Dresents detailed information as a context for 
~~ ~-~~~ -~ 

understanding whafihe-information in the financial statements, note bisc~bsures, and required supplementary information 
says about the County's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal Years ......................................................... F-5 
Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years .............................................................. F-6 
Fund Balances. Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years ..................................................... F-9 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years ..................................... F-I0 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County's most significant local 
revenue source, the property tax 

................... Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Yea rs... 
..................... Schedule of Property Tax Rates-Direct and Overlapping, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Principal Property Tax Payer 
Property Tax Levies and Coll 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's 
current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to issue additional debt in the future 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Yea 
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding, Last Ten ................................. 
Legal Debt Margin Information, Last Ten Fiscal Yea 
Pledged Revenue Coverage. Last Ten Fiscal Year 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the County's financial activities take place. 

Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Calendar Years ........................................ F-25 
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago ..................................................... F-26 

Operating lnformation 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the County's financial report relates to the services the County provides and the 
activities it performs. 

Full-time Equivalents County Government Employees by FunctionIProgram, Last Ten Fiscal Ye F-29 
Operating Indicators by FunctionlProgram, Last Ten Fiscal Years ....................................... F-30 
Capital Asset Statistics by FunctionIProgram, Last Ten Fiscal Years ................................ F-31 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from 
the comprehensive annual financial repofls for the relevant vear The 
County implemented GAS6 statement 34 in FY 2003; sche&~les presenting 
govemment-wide information include information beginning in that year. 
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Allegany County, Mayland 
Net Posltion By Component 

Lad Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Governmental activities 
Net investment in 

Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total governmental 
activties net posnion 

Businersnpe amities 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type 
actvities net postion 

Primary Government 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestoded 

Tdal pnmary government 
net postion 



ntegany county. Mawlana 
Changer In Net Porluon. Last Ten Flscal Y e a n  

(assrud barlr  of accountmgl 

Social Servlcer 
Education 

Pavment to oubllc school rvnem 

conr6wat1on d natural resources 
Communiiy deveiopment 8 hourlng 
Ewnomlc Development 

Interest on long term debt 
Total oovemmental adlvttlet expenses 

Business-type adivit~es: 
Water 
Sewer 
Nuning Home 
Other Funds 

Total burlness-Wpe adivlier expenses 

~ d a l  prlmary government expenses 

Program Revenues 
Governmental adrll ler: 

Charger For services: 
Public rafeW 
Public works 
Ewnomic development 
Olher adlvlties 

Operallng grant3 and contributions 
Capital grants and contributionr. 

Total governmental adivitier 
program revenues 

Business-type adivitien: 
Charges Far -ices: 

water 
Sanitary 
Nunlng Home 
Other Funds 

Operating grants and contributions 
Capitai grants and wnwibutions 

Total buanerr-Wpe anivities 
program revenues 

Total primary government 
program revenuer 

(a) Schedules presenting government wide (full accrual accounting) are available hom fiscal year 2003, the year the County implemenled GASB Stfiemem No. 34. 

F-6 



Allegany County. Maviand 
Changes In Net Posetion. Last Ten Flrca Years (a) 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

2004 
Net (ExpenrellRevanue 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 
Governmental activities 
Businesrtype activities 

$ (55,424,6771 $ (54,800,787) $ (60,117,109) $ (65,019,8691 $ 179,041,541) $ (73,015,7811 $ (72,083,537) S(76.325.956) $(72,848,993) 

Total primary government net expense $ ( s s . r 5 3 . W  
2 455 805 847.107 480 143 a 4,365 727 

$ i b / , t l l g m r  

General Revenues And Other Changes In Npt Position 
Governmental Activlies: 

T2r-r . 
Prnperhl taxes 
lnmme taxes 

S 26,865,528 $ 27,060,585 S 29,094,141 $ 30,141.707 $ 32,492,011 $ 34,266,623 
27,536,150 21,472,667 23,407,305 23.1 77,237 24,990.61 3 39,552,052 41,235,282 41,271,572 

Other local taxes 6,170,086 7,132,917 6,769,370 
26,338,493 

8,975,907 8,752,593 22,821,267 24,239,325 24,657,767 Licenser 426,638 410,720 308,405 323.025 332,774 7,160,132 0 3,260,020 S 3,360,863 2,965,592 
Unrestricted grants 7,791,350 6,252,618 6,300,447 342,819 7,570,738 

353,375 
7,173,715 

355.176 
6,966,869 

415,086 
Investment earnings 827,216 1,046,600 1,436,172 1,634,969 

7,341.783 
1,923,408 

7,346,258 
1,303,210 

7,359,609 
Gainl(iass1 on saielretirement of 1,082,485 1,184,451 1.163.443 

capital assets 
Miscellaneous (396,5441 (112,531) 2,876,383 707,145 

421,048 505,188 393,305 392,063 243,845 1,288,442 1 1,259.689 
61,820 

Transfers 1,776,087 551,293 96,895 (430,187) 
573,688 

(315,004) 
591,353 191,234 

Special ltem 1,360,990 e (88,631) 3.158.822 t (208.709) 1167,252) 
Total governmental activities $ 66 ,778 .W 3TTFXR55 -$ m k  
Businesstype activities: 

Properly taxes 
lnvestrnem earnings 

$ 542,636 $ 684.529 16 732,367 $ 884,340 $ 819,542 $ 891,363 
92,621 159,528 181,098 196,246 202,249 901,613 1,414,497 179,171 

996.575 
Mi~cellaneou~ 8,676 49,342 78,326 192,372 

183,601 
116.816 

183,350 
1 10,495 

175,200 
Gaidilosrl on saluretirernent of 108,761 166,208 5,924 

capitai assets 
Transfers (685,462) 4,569,787 p 430.187 315.004 129.278 

Total business-type activRies 88,631 
$ (:;;?:z;Lt 

208,709 . . $ 768.149 
167.252 

, , , , . . 
Total primary government 

Change In Net Position 
Governmemal activhies 
Busin--type activities 

$ 11,353,872 f $ 9,519,270 $ 12,565,314 $ 7,472,735 $ (2,402,989) $ 4,533,443 $ 6,059,955 $ 2,022,888 $ 5,089,678 
1,323,651 

Total primary government 
1189213 1 375 039 

$ 12 .577 .W fiw I ~ ~ 3 1 r n  371,777 8624211 6 970 667 3 031 350 60,858 
5,170,556 

Note: Emenses include indirect mot allocation. 



Allepany Counly, Maryland 
Chmges In Net PasiUon. Last Ten F l rsr l  Y e a n  

(accrual barlr of acsounUngl 

ExplsnaUon of Slg_nfl~=ntYa_r!!n! 

a Increase due to Allegany CouWr  panion of new school wnJtrunion. 
b lncreare due to an increase in personnel salaries and ftinge 
c lnueare in grams due to rignlflcant grams recelved far Aliegsny Highlands Tmtl and Banan Business Par* 
d lnuease in grants due 10 grants received for Ceianese Wastewater Treatment Plant 
e lnuease due to donation d land from the State of Maryland for the Ailegany Highlands Trail 
f lnuease due to revenue growth horn sources such as increase in tax rate, inwme tax increase, 

charges from baading federalistate prisoners while expenses remained relatively the same. 
g lncreare due expenditures for new High School 
h lncrearesldecreases due to seoaratino water dirtti- from combined Jewerlwater distrlcls, therefore inueasing water revenues and decreasing sewer. 
I "crease LC IO revenre U) e n w  tar capmta rep acemen! of a wnct nntsner 
j Inmare o.e toaonahon 0191 1 assets from me Stateof Man, an0 r tne afno.nt of $851 686 
K Inuease o ~ e l o  an nuraae n oersonne 98 anes andfnnoe o.e lo ne* Bureau of Pa .ce DeDanmem ana aaonlona 0.0 c safely qram expenal-res ~ ~~~~~~~ ~~ 

Declea6e o.e tu oecreise n A n r ~ n n  on Drown ex~cnd;~~res 
Drcrsare n qrams o.e to arge eaucauon w n s r ~ n a n  qranuoanr Oemg spent nor or Yean and nm n F Y  09 o.eto wmpctlon d Dmecl 
nuease n aramr o.e la arants rece .ra tor Georoer Creek W W P  ~oaraoc ~ - - ~ ~  . ~~ -~~ ~~ - ~ ~~ 

Decrease in other taxes due to ewnomic recirsioi whlch affeded remidation and transfer taxer. 
SO a C o ~ n w  oanea h~rs lnq nome 
lnuearr o.e fa aver S 4 m ,on an ARRACocra. i)rantmOnev rece ued 
~ e u c a s c  due to ,err qranl monef rece rw n F Y  2010 for me Gcoger Creel W P  L ~ r a a e  *m sn s near WmDeLon 
De.lea6e d ~ e  10 aramatc decrease n nlanuay userr revenue ano rewraatloMransfer taxes 
lncreare o.e to oeuearr n nanrav .sers laxrerenue lnereforetmn~fersto n a n * a ~  l.n0 nueareo 

~ ~-~~ - - ~  ~ ~~~ ~~~~~ 

~ e c r e a r e  n prams arqe r o.;to i n i  aiueare n Amen: an Recovery o Re nreiunenf A n  Granlr mat e r e  rece uea m 2010 
Oecrraae arqrl, due lo a ,arqe wnnruct.on Drojcn ocmq wmo elw .Georqer Creer Wastewater Plaml 
nueare a r o e ~  odctocan~r nullan re ~ e o  10 dontat on of ound na ~ ~~~~ - - - ~  ~ ~ 

llecrrd,e o.e xu qranl relalea prolens Demo wmD.clcd ano o r o m s  fnanced more wtn oans 
Decrease 0.e lo aonat on 010. .omq .n F  1 2012 n fne am0.m 01 t 1 6 ml ,on ano no r-cn aonat on n FY 13 
nueasc 0.c IO nuease n teaera an0 slate f.na.nq lor me Mo.m Savage AaterlSe*er Proten 



General Fund 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Reserved 
Unreserved 

Total General Fund 

All Other Governmental Funds 

Restncted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Reserved 
Unreserved, reported in. 

Specla1 revenue funds 
Capital projed funds 
Debt servlca funds 

otal all other 
govmmental funds 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Flscal Years 
(modified acuual basis of accounting) 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Changes In Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Last Ton Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Revenues 
Property taxes 
Income taxes 
Highway user taxes 
Other local taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 
State 
Other 

Service charges 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures 
General aovernment 
Public s$ety 
Public works 
Health and Hospitals 
Social Services 
Education 
Recreation, culture and libraries 
Conservation of natural resources 
Community Development and Housil 
Economic development 
Miscellaneous 
Appropriation to other governments 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Serv~ce: 

Interest 
Principal 

payments to Component Units 32,5501767 
Total expenditures 19,642,095 
Excess of revenues over (under) 

Expenditures $ 691,084 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from bonow~ng $ 588,607 $ 2,258,256 $ 149,483 $ 14,141,516 $ 5,237,697 4,663,719 63,719 
Proceeds from refinancing 14,736,467 
Payments to escrow agent 
Transfers in 11,735,629 14,107,776 10,558,497 12,204,383 11,082,801 19,552,823 7,823,754 7,293,320 5,877.961 13,684,810 
Transfers from component units 390.603 
Transfers out (9,959,540) (1 3,556,482) (1 0,461,602) (12,634,570) (1 1,397,805) (23,773,441) (16,393,999) (8,032,465) (7,460,574) (5,971,428) 
Sale of capital assets 18,674 298,110 4,552,930 358,874 2,330,993 102,838 217,528 369,452 84,771 2,517,850 
Total Other Financina 

Sources (uses)- & 3 $ 7 $ 4 ,  $ 3,440,071 $ 1 6 0 , 7 4 l $  @;:( ; 1;;;:;::;; 
Net Change in fund balances $ 1 ,29 f , rn  $ (2,161,991) 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 8.3% 7.2% 7.6% 6.7% 7.0% 7.2% 7.6% 7.3% 6.7% 18.2% 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Assessed Value and Actual Value Of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Personal 8 
Corporate Personal 

Total Direct 
Tax Rate 

2.5850 

Real Properly Total ~ i r e c i  
Fiscal Market Assessed Tax 

Value Value Rate 

Personal Property 
Market Assessed 
Value Value 

Corporate Personal Property 
Market Assessed 
Value Value 

Totals 
Market Assessed 
Value Value 

Source: Allegany County Finance Office & Allegany Tax Office 

Note: Tax rates expressed in $100 of assessed value 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Schedule Of Real Property Tax Rates - Direct And Overlapping and the County Direct Rate 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

M u n i r i ~ l l  Direr, la. R.tt, I111 

Banon 

Cumbedand 

Fro*thurg 

Lonacanmg 

Luke 

Midland 

W~rtcrnpon 

p 
BBn." 

Cumberland 

Fra.tburg 

Lonocanlng 

Luke 

Wdland 

W.*tempo" 

Uucamaraied 

SnmW TmImz Areas 11.4) 

s.oit.*l Olt"CU 

Bedford Rod 

Bowling Glem 

B r a d d o s k h  

crcrnptown 
Jmmjngs Run - Wills Creek 

ca3h Valley Subdin", 

McCaole 

Wtrfond Gilpin 

F d i d  BmphytOW 

oldtown 

Oeorgda Creek 
Medw Farm8 

Oldtown Road 

Other spmi.1 D i ~ t r i ~ "  

Bedford Road volunteer Fire co 

Be1 Air Spnid T u  AM 
Bawling Orren md Robafaf Place 

Bowling Orern Volunteer PireCo 

Comsmnll~Llght a Imp A s o c  

Crellptaw Ambullnsr T&ng Arcaea 
c<unptawn Cl* I~~PPv~PP"! k.rok.ro 

cre3.ptom S p d d  Fke Tax Aru 

Elleralie Spnid Taing Ares 
LaVdc Saniw, Comnu*~" 

Lavale F"c D~purme", 

Lavale Voluntm RIINF Squd 

MrCoole Specid Tax@ Area 

Morsow Spcial T-g Area 
Mt Savage Spend T e n g  Arcam 
Poiomsr Park Citiren, Comnutttt 

Rawling. special FircTar ,Area 

iqLZ 

0 1662 

0 9614 

0 5665 

0 1400 

0 1500 

0 2800 

0 6000 

0 8892 

0 8971 

0 8436 

0 8611 

0 8620 

0 8892 

0 8702 

0 98iO 

0 1000 

0 2500 

0 0070 

0 2500 

0 0520 

0 1860 

00310 

0 1500 

00190 

0 0330 

02101) 

00510 

0 0770 

0 0400 

0 0400 

0 0650 

0 MOO 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 0500 

0 0120 

0 0300 

0 0530 

0 0400 

0 0200 

0 0400 

0 1200 

0 MOO 

0 0410 

0 0800 

2012 - 

0 1709 

0 9654 

0 5665 

0 3400 

0 5500 

0 2800 

0 6000 

09038 

08519 

0 8579 

0 8814 

0 8799 

0 9038 

0 8854 

0 9810 

0 1000 

0 2100 

0 0070 

0 2100 

0 0520 

0 1860 

00110 

0 1500 

00190 

0 0310 

02lOO 

00510 

0 0770 

0 0400 

0 0400 

0 0650 

0 MOO 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 OSW 

0 0520 

0 0400 

0 1000 

0 0400 

0 0200 

0 0400 

0 ,200 

0 MM 

0 0450 

0 0800 

:a1 

0 169'1 

0 9614 

0 5500 

0 3700 

0 I500 

0 is00 

0 6000 

0 9475 

0 8999 

0 9065 

0 9318 

0 9289 

0 9475 

09328 

0 9829 

01000 

0 2900 

0 0070 

0 2900 

0 0120 

0 1860 

0 0700 

0 1700 

00190 

0 0800 

0 4700 

0 0600 

0 0770 

0 MOO 

0 0400 

0 0610 

0 0400 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 0500 

0 0520 

0 0400 

0 ,000 

0 0400 

0 0200 

0 0400 

0 1200 

0 wo 
0 0450 

0 0800 

rn 

02156 

0 9479 

0 5500 

0 3400 

0 I000 

0 2708 

0 6000 

0955, 

0 9090 

0 9136 

0 9313 

0 9302 

09551 

0 9333 

0 9829 

0 I000 

0 2530 

0 0040 

0 3000 

0 0520 

0 1200 

0 1400 

(1 2000 

0 0920 

0 0960 

0 1600 

0 1840 

0 2400 

0 0400 

0 0400 

0 0650 

0 0400 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 MOO 

0 0520 

0 MOO 

0 IOW 

0 MOO 

0 02W 

0 0400 

0 1200 

0 0400 

0 0320 

0 0600 

:m 

0 2220 

0 9479 

0 5500 

0 1100 

0 5000 

0 2800 

0 6000 

0 9494 

0 9087 

09111 

0 9283 

0 9227 

0 9611 

0 9263 

0 982'1 

0 1000 

02530 

0 OM0 

0 3000 

0 0120 

0 2200 

0 1400 

0 2000 

0 0920 

0 0'160 

0 1600 

0 1840 

0 2100 

0 MOO 

0 0400 

0 0120 

0 0400 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 0400 

0 0120 

0 0400 

0 1000 

0 0400 

0 0200 

0 0400 

0 1200 

0 0400 

0 0320 

0 0600 

2006 - 

0 2220 

0 9479 

0 5500 

0 1100 

0 5000 

0 28W 

0 6000 

0 9727 

0 9309 

0 9166 

0 9148 

09116 

0 9727 

0 9548 

10007 

0 1000 

0 2530 

0 0040 

0,000 

0 0520 

0 2200 

0 1400 

0 2000 

0 0920 

0 0960 

0 1600 

0 1840 

0 2400 

0 0400 

0 0400 

0 0320 

0 0400 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 MOO 

0 0520 

0 MOO 

0 ,000 

0 0100 

0 0200 

0 04W 

0 1200 

0 0400 

0 0110 

0 0600 

2 E  

0 2220 

0 9479 

0 5500 

0 3400 

03100 

0 2800 

0 6000 

0 9124 

0 9248 

0 9305 

omn 
0 9484 

0 9724 

09517 

10007 

0 ,000 

02530 

0 OM0 

0 1000 

0 0520 

0 2440 

0 1400 

0 2000 

0 0920 

0 0960 

0 1600 

0 1840 

0 2600 

0 0400 

0 0400 

0 0310 

0 0400 

0 0600 

0 0280 

0 0401) 

0 0520 

0 0400 

01000 

0 MOO 

0 0200 

0 0400 

0 1200 

0 0400 

0 0320 

0 0600 

Notes: 

(11 ,411 iu races are per S 100 ofivscrsed \due 

(1) Munic,pd ilu raw3 are pnrmld  Tar >nra""aarc purporr only and ire "0,lnrl"dedm 6. T0,dCo""" O h < t  Rare 

(11 Countyle~ rues vmy u a rrrvll oft&? ddlWermlld5 proridrdm laxpayrrr rsiding ulmunxipd)unid!ction. 

(Illhlm qead tnung are.. h&,c bcm nrrbhrhed m VIeCounW. As prouidd by "Mow nnrmlw. Ulc me lcv>ed and a r r u i d  wUlh he r p d d  iawlg area( la provide 

revenues for the m o n k t i o n  ofbonded indrbtadnorr of r m j q  districts and to pay for the protection, nrcn lighting and ather civil mnice.  

(51 Counn.d#rrrl rue lnrludoa Count? luu lcr,rd Tor he Counw and he rpeial iumg arm. 8, does not lneludet%wr levied by be mwuc#puiner.   or t c r u  Icvtrd on brhdf 

of rp.s~d f ~ n g  dirtz+tr. Ihr direct rue  includcr s proraled ponian ofthe lu rate that concsponds to ihr ponion ofthe CovnNs nrrclrable bare against wbch rhe tu  ir 

levied Therefore, the rotd County direct rate preiinted above i s  not a rnathcmaticd rum of dl  of the individud rat- presented. 

Source   leg any county ~inancr oepanmm~. ~aryiand state ~ r i e r r r n ~ ~ t  ofice 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Principal Property Tax Payers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2013 2004 
Percentage Percentage 
of  County of  County 

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank - - Value 

AES WR Limited Partnership 
New Page (MeadNVestvaco) 
Potomac Edison Co 
Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line 
CSX Transportation 
LaVale Associates 
Columbia Gas of Maryland 
Verizon-Maryland (Bell Atlantic) 
Hunter Douglas Northeast, Inc. 
Allegany Coal-Land 
Level 3 Communications 
Charter Communications 
Total 

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office 

Note: Total county taxable assessed value includes real estate and personal property 
Largest assessed properties are not necessarily the largest taxpayer due to tax exemptions 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Real Property 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections 

Percentage in Subsequent in Subsequent 
Amount of Levy Years Yean 

19,838,116 93.40% (23,385) 1,377,420 
20,865,094 92.82% (50,087) 1.548.005 
21,894,084 93.06% (23,499) 1.594.051 
22,574,068 93.47% (37,178) 1,540,453 
24,418,173 92.68% (53,467) 1,823,880 
28,710,075 92.98% (52,832) 1.954848 
28,546.101 91.72% (31.859) 2,517,120 
30,352.908 92.35% (24,380) 1.900.070 
30,557,037 92.49% (13,578) 1,041,498 
30,023,529 91.65% 

Fiscal 
Year 
Ended 

June 30, - 
Grand Total lnformation 

Percentage 
L ~ V  Collections of Levy 

Taxes Levied 
for the 

Fiscal Year 

Personal Property 

FIscd 
Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Collected within the 
Flscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections 

Percentage in Subsequent in  Subsequent 
Amount of Levy Years Yean 

Taxer Levied 
forthe 

Fbcd  Year 

Grand Total information 
Percentaae 

Collectlons 

234,078 
233,449 
207,698 
195,657 
162.202 
142,342 
129,381 
129,747 
120,181 
114,347 

Corporate Personal Property 

Fiscal 
Year 

Collected within the 
Grand Total lnformation 

Percentage 
Levy Collections of Levy 

Taxes Levied 
for the 

Fiscal Year 

~ ~~ ~ ~ 

Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections 
Percentage in Subsequent In Subsequent 

Amount of Levy Yean Years 

. . 
Ended 

June 30, 

Total Taxes Levied 

Fiscal 
Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Percentage 
Levy Changes 
In Subsequent 

Yean 

(344,032) 
(178,340) 

(88,754) 
(81,071) 
149,740 

1,187,848 
(129,835) 
(105,854) 

(63,728) 

Collections 
in Subsequent 

Yean 

1,209,114 
1,531,077 
1,686,141 
1,602,120 
2,171.099 
3,301,180 
3.213848 
2,004.932 
1,891,439 

Taxes Levied 
forthe 

Fiscal Year 

30,411,557 
31,014,892 
31,942,125 
32,571,362 
34,458,868 
38,598.71 1 
40,345,097 
41,173,417 
41,318,949 
40,787,495 

Grand Total lnformation 
Percentage 

~ e v y  collections of ~ e v y  Amount of ~evy- 

ld Utility Omce &Ailegany County Finance Omce Source: Ali egany County Tax ar 



DEBT CAPACITY 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Ratios Of Outstanding Debt By Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Governmental Activities Business -Type Activities 
General Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Sanitary Sanitary Nursing Total Percentage 

Fiscal Obligation Term Capital State Term Federal Capital Term State Federal Home Primary of Personal 
Year Bonds Notes Leases Loans Notes Loam - Bonds Notes Loans Loans Loans Government Income 

Note Details regarding the CounWs outstanding debt can be found in the ndes to the fmancial statements 
Population and Per Capita Income information provided on Demographic and Economic Statistics Chart 

Debt 
Per 

Capita 

Source: Allegany County Finance Office and Bureau Of Emnomic Analysis 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

General Obligation Debt Outstanding 

Fiscal 
Year 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 

27,945.000 
26,596,000 
22,944,000 
28,532,000 
24,949,597 
25,787,011 
21,920,544 
17,861,152 
14,215,926 
20,948,078 

Taxable 
Value of 
Property 

Percentage of 
Actual Taxable 

Value of 
Property Population 

Debt 
Per 

Capita 

377.64 
361.17 
315.98 
392.99 
343.38 
355.53 
291.88 
237.96 
190.33 
283.04 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements 
Long-term compensated absences payable balances are not included in this schedule 

Source: Allegany County Finance Office and Bureau Of Economic Analysis 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 

Population 73,999 73,639 72,613 72.603 72,658 72,532 75,101 75.059 74,692 
Inmate population excluded 3,279 3.279 3,279 3,279 3,279 3,279 3,279 3,279 3,279 

Net population for debt limit 70,720 70,360 69,334 69,324 69.379 69.253 71,822 71,780 71,413 

Debt Per Capita 
Debt Limit 

Total Net Debt applicable to limit 36,597,447 34,850,072 30,283,291 40,211,723 40,556.925 40,491,979 35,667,904 30,585.074 25,991,086 

Legal Debit Margin 4,773.753 6,310,528 10,277,099 342,817 29,790 21,026 6,347,966 11,406,226 15,785,519 

Total net debt applicable to the 
limit as a percentage of debt limit 88.5% 84.7% 74.7% 99.2% 99.9% 99.9% 84.9% 72.8% 62.2% 

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Census Bureau & Allegany County Finance Office 

County debt policy dated May 1996 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Pledged-Revenue Coverage 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

SANITARY DISTRICTS 
Net Revenue 

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for 
Year 

2013 
Revenues ( I )  

6,710.671 
6,663,036 
6,944,595 
6,166,813 
5,947,874 
5,756,775 
6,800,108 
6,390,329 
6,138.374 
5,380,331 

Debt Service 
917.191 

WATER DISTRICTS 
Net Revenue 

Fiscal 
Year 

2013 
2012 
201 1 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 

Gross 
Revenues (1) 

3,879,651 
3,708,484 
3,863,485 
3,442,520 
2,866,797 
2,585,222 
1,417,547 
1,430,789 
1,180,132 
1,124,973 

Operating 
Expenses (2) 

3,095,376 

Available for 
Debt Service 

724,275 

Principal 
1,117,642 
1,112,180 
1,113,166 

725,634 
727,580 
786.386 
750.057 
436.091 
342,541 
379.008 

Principal 
158,655 
112.456 
97.647 
89.693 

100,967 
97,009 
60,953 
55,436 
48,352 
87,484 

Interest 
352,578 
321,865 
336.551 
315,904 
283,759 
233,002 
233,277 
190,715 
206,399 

(3) 219.141 

Interest 
290,816 

Total 
1.470.220 

Total 
449,471 

Coverage 
0.62 

Coverage 
1.61 

1 -Total revenues includes interest, but does not include capital grants or gainlloss on sale of assets 
2 -Total operating expenses less depreciation and interest expense 
3 -Does not include principal payments of $1,111,052 paid with debt proceeds from refunding. 
4 - Beginning FY 08, several combined waterlsewer deoartments were s ~ l i t  into seDarate water districts and seDarate sewer 

districts instead of being reported totally as a sewer'department, therefore creaiing large variances when comparing to prior years 
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Year 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

Population 

Personal 
Income 
In 000s 

1,785,371 
1,884,432 
1,897,150 
1,974,017 
2,204,237 
2,310,845 
2,292,903 
2,352,416 
2,453,991 
2,400,000 

Per 
Capita 

Personal 
Income 

24,127 
25,590 
26,127 
27,189 
30,337 
31,860 
30,531 
31,341 
32,855 
32,000 

Public 
School 

Enrollment 

9,926 
9,840 
9,715 
9,526 
9,221 
9,157 
9,152 
9,022 
8,913 
8,929 

Unemployment 
Rate 

Source - Population, personal income and per capita - Bureau of Economic Analysis 
Public School Enrollment - Allegany County Board Of Education 
Unemployment Rate - Maryland Department Of Labor, Licensing and Regulation 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

201 3 
Percentage 

Of Total 
County 

Employer Employees Rank Employment - 
Western Maryland Health Systems 2,290 1 6.67% 
ATK Tactical Systems 1,396 2 4.06% 
Allegany County Board Of Education 1,346 3 3.92% 
Frostburg State University 922 4 2.68% 
CSX Transportation 900 5 2.62% 
New Page Corporation (Westvaco) 870 6 2.53% 
Hunter Douglas 580 7 1.69% 
Allegany College 559 8 1.63% 
North Branch Correctional Institution 557 9 1.62% 
Western Correctional Institution 552 10 1.61% 
Allegany County Government 
CyberRep 

Total 9,972 29.03% 

2004 
Percentage 

Of Total 
County 

Employees Rank Employment - 
2,380 1 7.24% 

1.240 2 3.77% 
830 5 2.53% 

1,000 4 
1.215 3 3.70% 
500 9 
500 7 

712 6 2.17% 
500 8 1.52% 
450 10 

9,327 20.93% 

Source: Allegany County Economic Development Oftice and Maryland Department of Business & 
Economic DeveloDment. 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees 

by FunctionlProgram 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

FunctionlProgram 

General Government 
Commissioners 8 Staff 
Judicial 
Finance 
Tax Ofice 
Maintenance 
Other 

Public Safety 
SheriftlBureau of Police 
Detention Center 
91 1 
Other 

Public Works 
Roads division 
Engineering 
Solid Waste 
Transit 

Health and Hospitals 
Social Services 
Recreation, culture, libraries, tourism 
Conservation of natural resources 
Community Development and Housing 
Economic Development 
Sanitaly 
~urs ing Home 
Total 

Source: Allegany County Finance Office-Budget 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Operating Indicators By FunctionlProgram 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

FunctionlProgram 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 2013 
General Government 

Average number of tax bills issued 38,020 38,060 38,130 38,124 38,419 38,454 36,532 38,518 38,529 38530 
Number of building permits issued 479 469 424 460 410 372 312 328 325 285 

Public Safety 
Total Number of arrests 1.505 1,341 1,246 608 1,060 1,491 1,608 1,265 1,593 1.860 
Total Number of traffic stops 199 613 1,527 1.153 1,167 1,840 1.640 1,579 1,782 1,492 
Average number of inmates 180 180 172 179 203 168 157 170 150 153 
Number of Volunteer Fire Stations 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 22 21 

Public Works 
Miles of roads maintained 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 
Street resurfacing (miles) 47 35 23 31 30 30 Not Available Not Availabl~Not Available 
Recycling, total tons (calendar year) 20,058 22.468 24,685 23.925 25.121 25,953 21.923 Not AvailableNot Available 

Social Services 
Transit route miles 470,456 445,957 500.772 675,570 502,317 446,420 384.182 332,324 381.238 376,369 
Transit passengers 99.441 94,813 119,027 138,131 179.555 189,004 189.708 187.522 219.995 210,601 

Community Development and Housing 
Number of families' rent subsidized 274 253 262 267 190 196 " NIA * NIA ** NIA " NIA 
Low-Income Housing loans issued 32 43 36 43 21 35 7 " NIA " NIA ^* N/A 

Sanitary 
Average number of sanitarylwater customer: 8.500 8.500 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500 9,250 9,250 9,500 9,750 

Nursing Home 
Total Number of Beds Available. Annually 55,998 55,845 55,845 55.845 55,998 55,645 0 0 0 0 
Number of Beds Occupied Annually 51,427 48,701 47,422 48,400 47,512 48,692 0 0 0 0 
Occupancy Rate, Annual 92% 87% 85% 86% 85% 87% 0 0 0 0 

Gaming 
Games Sold 39.935 50,870 49,901 48.800 43.056 36,206 35,357 33,395 32.701 30,699 
Operators Licensed 79 * 94 100 79 83 85 92 88 100 81 
Inspections Conducted 1,200 ' 1.180 1,035 965 972 921 860 672 85 1 610 

Only in operation for 7 months of the fiscal year 
" Local nonprofit agency absorbed the County's Section 8 program during FY 2010 

Source: Various County Departments 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Capital Asset Statistics by FunctionlProgram 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

FunctionlProgram 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 2013 

General Government 
Number of major buildings maintained 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 

Public Safety 
Number of police stations 1 1 1 1 1 2 4 4 4 4 
Number of patrol vehicles 13 20 20 20 20 29 34 38 36 40 

Public Works 
Miles of roads maintained 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 544 
Average number of highway vehicles 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 
Number of Garages-Roads Dept 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Number of operating transit buses 9 9 10 10 11 14 21 22 22 22 

Economic Development 
Number of Industrial parks 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Number of Buildings leases 14 14 14 15 12 10 13 13 13 12 

Sanitary 
SanitaryMlater (miles) 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 
Number of Wastewater Treatment plants 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 
Number of Water Storage Tanks 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Nursing Home 
Number of buildings maintained 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 

Source: Various County Departments 
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